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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

TRARKERESEAMBFERE 2XE - BE -

&  The following tables are summaries of the Group’s results, assets,

BREREE : liabilities and equity for the past five financial years:
BEt-A=t-HLEE
Year ended 31 December
—E-—-f CZZ-TF CZTTNEFE CTITN\F CZTTLHE
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
AR®TT AR®TT ARETT ARETT ARETH
E Results RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
HERA Revenue 481,402 396,298 615,391 777,807 834,608
Hep: Where:
MLCC #7#% MLCC business 357,274 396,298 300,289 232,646 221,545
BEFMIHE (1) Sale of mobile phones (Note 1) - - 315,102 545,161 609,774
BEFHTH (Wit 1) Mobile phone
components (Note 1) - - - - 3,289
BBFHRES (Wit 2) Trading of mobile phones
(Note 2) 124,128 - - - -
HEKA Cost of sales (417,333) (308,350) (529,227) (679,592) (701,641)
EM Gross profit 64,069 87,948 86,164 98,215 132,967
EERE Profit for the year 14,556 33,955 19,703 11,317 68,433
PAR AL &L attributable to;
-BRARESBA - Equity holders of the parent 14,556 33,955 19,703 11,317 68,433
BREXEF Basic earnings per share 36flcents 84fllcents 49flcents 281lcents 22.6fl cents
W+=B=+-H
As at 31 December
“E-—-f CZZ-%TF ZTTNE CZTITN\F CZTTtHE
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
ARBTR ARETT AREFTT ARETT ARETR
EEREHE Assets and liabilities RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
BEE Total assets 833,461 662,375 600,239 677,357 623,102
BEE Total liabilities 389,066 225,105 190,144 288,694 235,027
BiEn Total equity 444,395 437,270 410,095 388,663 388,075
AT ATRELG attributable to:
-HRARESEA - Equity holders of the parent 444,395 437,270 410,095 388,663 388,075

fEE

Note:

(1) AEEBRHFHRRERHERBLEFEEBEEEHFH (1) The manufacturing and sale of Eton brand mobile phones and mobile phone

T EE RFE2009F 10 A 14 HR1THR IR S L@
BHEERNRI T EBERHR AR A A K 2 IARE R L@k

RERIRIRIEETS o

(2) F2011458A  RAFRBEUHBHFRESEL  FERE Q)
AE-HEEERERHFRRAEGNESHEBEFI -

components segment of the Group was discontinued upon the pass of the
ordinary resolution to dispose of its entire equity interest in Eycom Technology
Co., Limited at the EGM held on 14 October, 2009.

In August 2011, the Company set up the new mobile phones trading business
which engages in purchase of mobile phones from third party suppliers and sales
to overseas customers.

FheER(EE)BRAR
T —FFR
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HITESE

PRIZEELE B3 ARAAITEEREES
FETHEE c BEDEBR - KB MEEYR
B o BREETMEANEENRIPA - P1082F £
NEFISK(EBEDGEIAZ)  EIRE
B4 B o EEE  M192FRAELERBEAR—K
FEESTHEERRER>HARREESER S
BRABETRME - R1994F  REAESTH A
FREEENEFREIEEZ20014F ° 19964 -
BEANRNGESFLER]  W1097 FEE R
B[ H— | 488EE - YN 1008 FREAFNESR
BARRRASEHEZEGRE - B4 S 2001
FUAHETASEEEE -

B 445 0 RARIMITES MLCC EEZ
EgI . B BAREBMLCC R BIE S 2 & 3
B o B4 1900F 6 AREREFRIE T RE(H
FEERREASE) S TREE LB - 711993
FEERERETIARB(EBERREARE) - W
BEEBEL  EEETHAG - 2E% 0 BAEMN
AREEBEROBERAREELRE  BEERSE
FEMEHE ST - BHEAEEBT aHE
HEAHE o B ER 2001 F10 ABEFRRES
B D AR ARIMARER -

© EHEE)

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chen Weirong (FRf££8), aged 53, is an Executive Director
and Chairman of the Board, as well as Chief Executive Officer of
the Company. He is in charge of the corporate strategy, planning
and overall development. He is also the founder of the Group.
Mr. Chen graduated from #EF TZ267 (South China Institute of
Technology*, now known as #EFIE T AE, South China University
of Technology*) in 1982 with a bachelor’s degree in engineering.
Upon graduation, Mr. Chen started his career as a technician in
EEBERKHAER AR (Konka Group Company Limited*) in 1982,
a major consumer electronics manufacturing and distribution
enterprise in the PRC, and became its managing director in 1994
until 2001. In 1996, Mr. Chen was elected as “Outstanding Young
Entrepreneur of Shenzhen”, in 1997, he was awarded the “National
‘May 1st’ Labour Medal” (2B [ i—] &8)4EF) and in 1998, he
was elected as a representative in the Standing Committee of the
9th National People’s Congress. Mr. Chen has been the Chairman
of the Group since November 2001.

Mr. Liao Jie (B2f), aged 44, is an Executive Director of the
Company. He is also the general manager of MLCC division and
is in charge of the strategic planning and development of MLCC
business of the Group. Mr. Liao graduated from ZEFRIET K
(Huazhong University of Science and Technology*, now known
as FERRIITAE) with a bachelor’'s degree in engineering in June
1990. He obtained Master of Science specializing in electronics
components from #FEAIE T K (Huazhong University of Science
and Technology*, now known as FEFREHTAE) in 1993. Upon
graduation, Mr. Liao joined Konka Group Company Limited as
a manager, responsible for supervising the quality control of
electronics raw materials. He was then transferred to the sales
division to take charge of the sales in Eastern China. Mr. Liao
joined the Group in October 2001 after he left Konka Group
Company Limited.

* For identification purpose only

FheER(EE)BRAR
T —FFR
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FHITEE

BEZL - 4455 REEARERFEYIMEBER
HEBR QRN ZEBIER - 7KH2009F 10 A A
NEITEEWELITAFNITES - BLLH
A AR TEBRIEARARBLE - FLLR
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B RIMERENTEEEBELEM - WK 2001
FINAKREH -
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Mr. Xu Chuncheng (#R#fi%%), aged 50, was appointed as an
Executive Director of the Company on 1 May 2010. He also holds
the position of Chief Financial Officer of the Company, responsible
for overall financial and strategic planning of the Group. Mr. Xu
is the deputy general manager of MLCC division of the Group
since October 2009. Mr. Xu graduated from S#RIATEE2ET (Hunan
Normal College*, now known as #iFAH&E A2, Hunan Normal
University*) in 1982 with a bachelor’'s degree in science. He
obtained a master’s degree in quantitative economics from &
W iEEERT (Changsha Railway College®, now known as ¥
KEZ Central South University*) in 1987 and further obtained a
doctoral degree in international finance from the Graduate School
of the People’s Bank of China in 1996. From 1987 to 1992, he
was the supervisor of research division of The People’s Bank of
China, Hunan Branch where he was responsible for the research
of macroeconomics and finance. From 1994 to 1998, he was the
deputy general manager of international business and merchant
banking divisions under China Merchants Bank, Headquarters
where he was responsible for the management of foreign exchange
policies and international finance business. Prior to joining the
Group in August 2006, Mr. Xu worked at Konka Group and Konka
Telecommunications Technology as deputy chief financial officer
and chief financial officer respectively where he was in charge of
strategic corporate financial planning and international trading from
1998 to 2006.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Shuang Mei (5818), aged 44, was re-designated as Non-
executive Director from Executive Director of the Company in
October 2009 following the disposal of the Company’s entire equity
interest in Shenzhen Eycom Technology Co., Limited*. She is now
the general manager of Shenzhen Eycom Technology Co., Ltd. Ms.
Shuang graduated from & 5 AE (Nanjing University*) in 1991 with
a bachelor’s degree in arts and started her career as a journalist
for two newspapers until 1999. In 2000, she obtained a master’s
degree in business administration from the University of Lancaster,
and joined the Group in 2001.

* For identification purpose only
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© EHEE)

Mr. Chen Hao (F#7%), aged 46, is a Non-executive Director of the
Company. Mr. Chen graduated from ZFEFIE T KE (Huazhong
University of Science and Technology*, now known as ZE/ Rl A
&) with a bachelor’s degree in computer science in 1989. He has
over 16 years of experience in the information technology industry.
Mr. Chen joined Legend Group in 1992. He was the founder and
the general manager of Legend Advanced System Ltd. During his
tenure, he was responsible for strategic management and business
implementation. Mr. Chen founded Legend Capital, a venture
capital firm, in 2001, and has served as head of investment ever
since. He is currently a director of the company, responsible for
overall control and coordination of investment activities. Mr. Chan
is also a director of a number of information technology companies,
including Worksoft Creative Software Tech., Ltd. (NYSE:VIT),
Spreadtrust Communications, Inc. (NASDAQ: SPRD) and Parade
Technologies Ltd. (4966.TWO). He also serves as a director in a
number of investment companies. He was appointed as a Non-
executive Director of the Company in April 2007.

Mr. Cheng Wusheng (#2%2%4), aged 44, is a Non-executive
Director of the Company. He was regional manager of Konka
Group Company Limited and deputy general manager of BRFEE{E
B F BT (Shaanxi Konka Electronic Co., Ltd.*) from October
1990 to June 1996, responsible for product sales and promotion.
Mr. Cheng is currently the director of FIIMEBHEHERA
&) (Shenzhen Jinmaixin Trading Co., Ltd.*) and #JIHEEGEE
¥ BMRAF] (Shenzhen Nanhua Yaxing Industrial Co., Ltd.*), both
of which are trading companies. He has shareholding interests in
the Company through his wholly-owned company WU SHENG
Management Limited. He was appointed as a Non-executive
Director of the Company in April 2007.

Mr. Zhang Zhilin (38 5#K), aged 61, is a Non-executive Director of
the Company. He was the factory director of /R EHEAE
SEMPE A BB (Shanghai Pudong Heging Town Xiangyang
Village Xiangyang Electroplating Factory*) from February 1981
to November 1985 and was also the factory director of /&
HEBEBBERM (Shanghai Pudong Meiling Plastics Factory®)
from December 1985 to January 1994. As a factory director, he
was responsible for production operation and human resource
management. Mr. Zhang is currently the director of E/EEREI®
A AT (Shanghai Huali Packing Co., Ltd.*), /G EHEAR
[ A &) (Shanghai Meiyang Precision Moulding Co., Ltd.*), _t/&FER5
B ¥ AR AT (Shanghai Huiyang Industrial Co., Ltd.*), E/EZRER

EZBBRGM (Shanghai Pudong Meiling Plastics Factory®), all of
which are manufacturing companies. He was appointed as a Non-
executive Director of the Company in April 2007 .

* For identification purpose only
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Pan Wei (7%1Z), aged 55, is an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company. Mr. Pan graduated from b5 &5
27 (Beiing Institute of Steel*, now known as 1bFEREIHAZ,
University of Science and Technology Beijing*) with a bachelor’s
degree in physical chemistry in 1982. He obtained a master’s
degree in engineering and doctoral degree in engineering from
Nagoya University in 1987 and 1990 respectively. He is currently a
professor in the Department of Materials Science and Engineering,
Tsinghua University. Mr. Pan specialises in material science,
engineering research and educational projects, including thermal
barrier materials, transparent ceramic materials, nano materials and
devices and other conductive ceramic materials. He was appointed
as an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in April
2007.

Mr. Chu Kin Wang, Peleus (4f&7%), aged 47, is the Company’s
independent non-executive Director since April 2007. He is also
the chairman of the audit committee of the Board. Mr. Chu has
over 20 years of experience in corporate finance, audit, accounting
and taxation. Mr. Chu is an executive director of Chinese People
Holdings Company Limited (FRIERBRAF]) (stock code:
681) and an independent non-executive director of China Vehicle
Components Technology Holdings Limited (A BB &= 2R {FR
BIRAR]) (stock code: 01269), Huayu Expressway Group Limited
(ESeREBEAR AT (stock code: 01823), Flyke International
Holdings Limited (5 ERZERARAR]) (stock code: 01998)
and China AU Group Holdings Limited (FFE4& 2% EER AR A
A]) (stock code: 8176). During the period from September 2005
to March 2007 Mr. Chu was the executive director of Mastermind
Capital Limited (ZEIEEABRAF]) (stock code: 905) which
was known as Haywood Investments Limited during the relevant
period. During the period from, Mr. Chu was an independent non-
executive director of Bright Prosperous Holdings Limited (& &%
[&EBRAA]) (stock code: 723) from January 2008 to August 2010.
Mr. Chu served Hong Long Holdings Limited (JBEIZRBRA
A]) (stock code: 1383) as a company secretary during the period
from January 2007 to September 2010, All of the aforementioned
companies are companies listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange. Mr. Chu graduated from The University of Hong
Kong with a Master Degree in Business Administration. Mr.
Chu is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants. Mr. Chu is also an associate member of both the
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators and the Hong
Kong Institute of Company Secretaries.

* For identification purpose only
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Mr. Liu Huanbin (2##2), aged 70, is an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company. Mr. Liu graduated from =
# TPt (South China Institute of Technology*, now known as
FERJIE T RE South China University of Technology®) in 1965
with a bachelor’'s degree in engineering. He holds professorship
in chemical engineering in FEFMIE L AZ (South China University
of Technology®), and was later promoted to the principal of the
university for the tenure from May 1995 to September 2003. In

2001, Mr. Liu was awarded as a foreign academician by Academy
of Engineering of Russia. He is currently a professor in the
South China University of Technology. He was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in April 2007.

* For identification purpose only
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| hereby present the annual financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2011 on behalf of the Board of the
Company.

In 2011, as the European sovereign debt crisis deteriorated and
the economies of major developed countries were still under
depression, the global demand of electronic products was
suppressed. MLCC, an upstream business of electronic products,
suffered from a more intensified competition. Thus, MLCC
recorded lower operating income and gross profit.

Since MLCC was under intensified competition, we commenced
mobile phone trading business in August.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The Group recorded an operating income of RMB 481,400,000,
representing an increase of 21.5% over last year, of which
operating income from MLCC amounted to RMB357,300,000,
representing a decrease of 9.8% over last year.

Profit after tax attributable to shareholders of the Company in 2011
amounted to RMB14,600,000, representing a decrease of 57% as
compared to that of 2010. Earnings per share decrease to RMB3.6
cents this year from RMB8.4 cents last year.

Since MLCC was under intensified competition, we commenced
mobile phone trading business by virtue of our own advantages
in August 2011. As of 31 December 2011, operating income
and gross profit from mobile phone trading business was
RMB124,100,000 and RMB7,400,000 respectively.

DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of final cash dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2011.

BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2011, the world economy was still under depression and the
demand for MLCC, an upstream business of electronic and digital
products, slowed down and suffered from intensified competition.
The operating income and gross profit of the Group’s MLCC
business dropped accordingly. The Group only engaged in MLCC
solely in the past, since August 2011, yet, we commenced mobile
phone trading business and tried to develop another income
source.

1
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20123 A30H

OUTLOOK

In 2012, given that the deteriorating European sovereign debt crisis
and regional politic conflicts as well as the greater volatility of the
world’s major economies, the price of bulk commodities such as
oil and coal will increase in a greater extent, which will defiantly
lead to an increase in the price for logistics, water and electricity.
Meanwhile, as the price of necessity whose materials are mainly
agricultural and dairy products has been growing significantly, the
living cost of corporate staff rises materially. As a result, enterprises
face pressure from employees’ request for salary increase. In
2012, the Company will come under the pressure of rising cost,
such as increasing price of raw materials and electricity as well
as employees’ request for salary increase, together with the
competition within the sector, resulting in a lower average price of
products. The Group tends to improve its production and service
efficiency to offset impact from the increase in cost by better
internal management while mobile phone trading business will be
optimized and enhanced in order to increase the profitability of
such another income source of the Company.

APPRECIATION

| would also like to take this opportunity to thank all of our
customers and shareholders for their continuing support, our
directors for their guidance and insights, as well as our staff for
their dedication and efforts.

Chairman
Chen Weirong

30 March 2012
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BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2011, the worsening European debt crisis had led the
economies of the major developed economies such as the US,
Europe and Japan, which had not yet recovered, to another
recession, and there was no rebound of global demand for
electronic products. The PRC Government retreated from the
economic stimulation policies initiatively launched in 2009 for the
purpose of expanding domestic consumption, dampening the
demand for electronic products. For this reason, demand for MLCC
products, which are located in the upstream of the electronic
industry, lost momentum to grow and competition among the
industry intensified. In 2011, the revenue of the Group increased
by RMB85.1 million to RMB481.4 million, representing a growth of
21.5% as compared to that of 2010. The gross profit decreased
by RMB23.8 to RMB64.1 million, representing a drop of 27.1%. In
particular, the sales revenue from MLCC was RMB357.3 million,
representing a decrease of 9.8% over that of 2010 and a decrease
of 35.6% in gross margin.

Given the fierce competition in the MLCC industry, on the basis of
the analysis on the MLCC business in the first half of 2011 and in
light of the Group’s extensive cooperation with a wide spectrum
of participants of the electronic industry the Group’s management
was of the opinion that developing the mobile phone trading
business by leveraging the Group’s strength could be another
promising source of growth. In August 2011, the Group established
a wholly-owned subsidiary (Hong Kong Wei Chang NER Co.,
Limited) in Hong Kong to develop electronic trading business with
focus on mobile phone trading business. As at 31 December 2011
revenue and gross profit from mobile phone trading business
amounted to RMB124.1 million and RMB7.4 million respectively
and the outstanding balance of the trade receivables from
mobile phone trading business was RMB25.2 million. The trade
receivables are fully settled as at date of this report.

Since the development period of the mobile phone trading
business was relatively short and the operating model was relatively
simple, the corresponding internal control procedure was not
well put in place and the related accounting records such as
customers’ information, logistics bills and reconciliation record of
the sales of the business were not recorded in a timely manner.
The Company was therefore unable to provide the auditor of the
Company with sufficient and appropriate information to conduct
the auditing of the sales of the business. Thus, the auditor of
the Group issues a qualified opinion on the revenue and trade
receivables of the business. The management of the Company
will improve the collection and management of the business
information of mobile phone trading and optimize all monitoring
procedures in 2012 to turn the trading business into a source of
strong and persistent growth within the Company.
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In 2011, profit attributable to shareholders of the Company
amounted to approximately RMB14.6 million, representing a
decrease of 57% over that of 2010.

PROSPECTS

In 2012, the outlook of European debt crisis still remains uncertain
as economic recovery in major developed countries such as the
US, Europe and Japan is not obvious. The global financial market
is expected to become more volatile. Given the cyclical nature of
the digital product sector and the problem of overcapacity, the
business environment is expected to further deteriorate. As a
supplier of MLCC products which is situated in the upstream of the
electronic products sector, the Group will encounter an even more
complicated business environment.

In the mainland China, for the sake of guaranteeing a steady
growth of employment, the Central Government will provide more
support to SMEs and the demand for MLCC from the electronic
products manufacturing enterprises of small and medium-size is
expected to experience a significant increase, which will serve as
a breakthrough for the Group to maintain a rapid growth of MLCC
business and steady growth in gross margin. Since the relatively
weak capability of SMEs in the procurement of accessories
and export, together with the Group’s long-term relationship
with a large number of small to medium size trading enterprises
and electronic products producers, there is more room for the
Company to expand the trading business with them, which in turn
enhances the potential value of the Company.

REVIEW FROM PRINCIPAL BUSINESS
Revenue from principal business

The revenue of the Group’s business for 2011 was RMB481.4
million, representing a 21.5% increase over that of 2010. This was
mainly due to the opening of the mobile phone trading business of
the Group in the second half of 2011.

In particular, the revenue of the Group’s MLCC business was
RMB357.3 million, representing a decrease of 9.8% over 2010.
This was mainly due to the intensified competition in the industry,
and decrease in product unit price and gross profit margin.

Revenue from the Group’s mobile phone trading business for 2011
was RMB124.1 million, and the gross profit was RMB7.4 million.

FheER(EE)BRAR
T —FFR



EEENWER DN

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

ER

011 FEAEENENAARE64AHE L &
B2010F TN [527.2% £ EBRHA : "EBMLCC
EEBEITERTINE - EMREE TRIBERAK

B 2011 FEAEBAMLCCEBREFMAAR
567 BEIT 0 HE 20109/ 35.6% @ T EHE
B ITEBFNE - ERETE -

QONMNFEAEEFHRESFEBRABARE
124188 EFMARK7T4BET -

ER=E

011 FEAEEMNEFEAE13.3% ' E2010F K]
22.2% T FE8.9MEAEDS - EELEHMMLCCHIE

METRE  ARHRART ENETRENTFHRES
ES

Ed 201 FEAEBEMNMLCCEREFE A
15.9% * 820105 H)22.2% T[4 6.3 @ H 7 & -

20N FEAEEFHEFEBNENET6.0% °

Ht B WA MK S

O FEAREFEBHMEKWAFM Y S B ARE
115BETT  B2010F FAARKEAIFET -

HER D HBAE

011 FEAEBEEEBRAARKISIAS L
B2010FEHE26.7%  TER A BREHA
EIRFH R/ NDENISHEMLIIEA -

EHEER

O FEAKBEERERAARKE2T2EEL
B2010FEER488%  TER A1+ AETL
B RN HRESEERE 2 REFHEHESH
1EBREM -

EYANG HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO., LIMITED
Annual Report 2011

Gross Profit

Gross profit of the Group for 2011 was RMB64.1 million,
representing a decrease of 27.2% from that of 2010. The decrease
was mainly due to the intensified competition in MLCC industry,
and relatively large decrease in product unit price.

In particular, gross profit of the Group’s MLCC business for 2011
was RMB56.7 million, representing a decrease of 35.6% from
that of 2010. The decrease was mainly due to the intensified
competition in the industry and decrease in gross profit margin.

Revenue from the Group’s mobile phone trading business for 2011
was RMB124.1 million and the gross profit was RMB7.4 million.

Gross Profit Margin

The gross profit margin of the Group for 2011 was 13.3%,
representing a decrease of 8.9% as compared to 22.2% of 2010.
This was mainly due to the decline in the gross profit margin of
MLCC, as well as the new development of the mobile phone
trading business with relatively low gross profit margin.

In particular, the gross profit margin of the Group’s MLCC
business for 2011 was 15.9%, representing a decrease of 6.3% as
compared to 22.2% of 2010.

The gross profit margin of the mobile phone trading business for
2011 was 6.0%.

Other Income and Gain

Other income and gain of the Group for 2011 were RMB11.5
million, representing an increase of RMB4.1 million as compared to
2010.

Selling and Distribution Costs

The operation costs of the Group for 2011 were RMB13.1 million,
representing an increase of 26.7% over that of 2010. This was
mainly due to the increasing input in the market of SMEs by the
expansion of marketing staff for enlarging the market share.

Management Costs

The management costs of the Group for 2011 were RMB27.2
million, representing an increase of 48.8% over that of 2010. This
was mainly due to (i) the increase in the wages, welfare and social
insurance for the staff; and (i) the increase in the maintenance cost
of the plants in Yu Yang, Dong Guan.
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Research and Development Costs

The research and development costs of the Group for 2011 were
RMB7.2 million, representing a decrease of 23.6% over that of
2010. This was mainly due to (i) the completion of a part of R&D of
products researched and developed by the Group at early stage in
2010; and (ii) higher efficiency in R&D of products with leads to a
corresponding reduction in R&D cost.

Other Expenses

Other expenses of the Group for 2011 were RMB2.5 million,
representing a decrease of 67.1% over that of 2010. This was
mainly due to (i) the decrease in option fee; and (i) decrease in the
loss in translation and commission charge to banks.

Finance Costs

The finance costs of the Group for 2011 were RMB8.9 million,
representing a RMB1.8 million increase over that of 2010. This was
mainly due to the fact that an increase in interest expenses was
incurred by the increased bank loans during the year.

Income Tax Expenses

Income tax expenses of the Group for 2011 amounted to
approximately RMB2.2 million, representing a decrease of RMB6.5
million over 2010. This was mainly due to the decrease in the
Company’s earning.

Gearing Ratio

The Group monitors its capital through gearing ratio, being
net liabilities divided by capital plus net liabilities. Net liabilities
are determined as the aggregate of bank loans, trade and bills
payables and other payables (excluding accruals and deferred
income within one year) less cash and cash equivalent. Capital
refers to the equity attributable to the owners of the parent. As at
31 December 2010 and 2011, the gearing ratio of the Group was
approximately 23.4% and 39.9% respectively.

Property, Plant and Equipment

The net carrying amount as at 31 December 2011 was RMB294.2
million, representing an increase of RMB30.3 million from that of
2010. This was mainly due to the acquisition of new manufacturing
equipment.
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Investment Properties

The Group’s investment properties for 2011 amounted to RMB26.3
million, representing a decrease of RMB3.4 million over 2010. This
was mainly due to the recovery of part of the leased properties for
the Company’s use.

Other Intangible Assets

The other intangible assets of the Group for 2011 amounted to
RMB1.20 million, representing a decrease of RMBO0.17 million when
compared to that of 2010. This was mainly due to the amortisation
of intangible assets associated with the Group’s SAP management
software.

Trade and Bills Receivables

As at 31 December 2011, the net book values of trade and bills
receivables were RMB156.7 million, basically the same as that
of 2010. In particular, the trade receivables from customers of
mobile phone trading was RMB25.2 million. As at the date of this
announcement, all trade receivables from mobile phone trading
were collected.

Prepayments, Deposits and Other Receivables

As at 31 December 2011, prepayments, deposits and other
receivables of the Group were RMB24.3 million, representing an
increase of RMB11.5 million from that of 2010. This was mainly
due to an increase in external prepayment of the material and
equipment purchased in 2011.

Cash and Cash Equivalents and Pledged Bank Deposits

As at 31 December 2011, cash and cash equivalents and pledged
bank deposits of the Group were RMB191.7 million, representing
an increase of RMB125.1 million compared to that of 2010. This
was mainly due to an increase of letter of credits and pledged bank
deposits of bills receivables

11
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Trade and Bills Payables

As at 31 December 2011, the balance of the Group’s trade
payables was increased by approximately RMB11.9 million
from that at the end of 2010, while the balance of bills payables
decreased by RMB34.0 million. It was mainly due to: () the fact
that the credit term granted by the Group’s suppliers to the Group
was extended; (i) the decrease in bills payables was due to the fact
that as the Company extended a large pool of customers in China
and a major portion of receivables of the Company were settled
in the form of bills receivables, the Company directly endorsed
certain bills receivables collected for domestic suppliers in lieu of
the issuance of bank acceptance bills to the suppliers upon the
Company’s payment to the suppliers.

Deferred Income, Accruals and Other Payables

As at 31 December 2011, deferred income, accruals and other
payables of the Group were RMB36.3 million, representing an
increase of RMB3.1 million from that of 2010. The increase in
deferred income, accruals and other payables was mainly due to
the corresponding increase in year end bonus, which led to an
increase in staff remuneration payables at the end of the year.
At the same time, due to the expansion of production capacity,
the outstanding amount of the purchase of fixed assets and the
construction costs of Anhui Jineyang also increased as compared
with that at the end of 2010.

Interest-Bearing Bank Loans

As at 31 December 2011, the Group had outstanding interest-
bearing bank loans of RMB261.6 million, representing an increase
of RMB150.9 million over that of 2010, and the loans were
mainly used to boost the production and sales of MLCC, as
well as to maintain the Company’s liquidity and purchase wealth
management products.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2011, the Group had no material contingent
liabilities.

Commitments

As at 31 December 2011, the capital commitments of the Group
were RMB25.5 million, representing an increase of RMB10.6 million
over that of 2010, which was mainly due to the increase in the

Group’s purchase of equipment and plant construction which had
not yet been delivered.
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LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL
STRUCTURE

Net current asset
As at 31 December 2011, the Group had net current assets of

approximately RMB102.3 million, including current assets of
RMB482.6 million and current liabilities of RMB380.3 million.

HERE Cash flows
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As at 31 December 2011, the Group’s remaining balance of cash
and cash equivalents increased by RMB4.4 million from that of 31
December 2010. It was mainly due to:

1)  the cash inflow from operating activities of RMB53.9 million,
which was mainly due to efforts in the collection of sales
amount.

2)  the net cash outflow from investing activities of RMB62.9
million, which was mainly due to the increase in expenditure
for purchasing equipment and construction works.

3) net cash inflow from financing activities, which was generated
from factors such as bank loans, of RMB10.6 million.

BANKING FACILITIES
As at 31 December 2011, the Group had aggregate banking

facilities of approximately RMB248.0 million, of which
approximately RMB55.0 had not been utilized.
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FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

In 2011, the Group’s sales were mainly denominated in RMB, US
dollars and Hong Kong dollars, while its purchases were mainly
denominated in RMB, US dollars, Hong Kong dollars and Japanese
Yen. The trade receivables denominated in US dollars and Hong
Kong dollars were greater than the trade payables denominated
in US dollars and Hong Kong dollars. Meanwhile, the Group is
exposed to risks in respect of trade payables denominated in
Japanese Yen, but is basically not exposed to risks in respect of
trade receivables denominated in Japanese Yen. In the event of
vigorous fluctuation of the exchange rate, foreign currencies risk
will exist to a certain extent.

STAFF
For the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group had a total of

1,426 staff, whose remunerations and benefits are determined
based on the market, state policies and individual performance.
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It is the belief of the Company that good corporate governance is
the essence for delivering sustainable value to our shareholders,
employees and all other stakeholders in the investment community
alike. A high level of stewardship is achieved through the adoption
of the applicable code provisions of the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (the “CG Code”) stipulated in Appendix
14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing
Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The Board keeps assessing the Company’s practice
of and compliance with the CG Code and stays alert to the latest
amendments to the CG Code to attain a higher standard of
performance, transparency and accountability.

The Board has reviewed the corporate governance practices of the
Company and considers that the Company has complied with the
CG Code during the year ended 31 December 2011, save for the
exception as stated and explained below.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition of the Board and Directors’ background

The Board is responsible for all major strategic planning of the
Company, review on and approval of all major management and
operation policies so as to achieve the Group’s objectives. As
at 31 December 2011, there were 10 members in the Board
comprising 3 Executives Directors, 4 Non-executive Directors and
3 Independent Non-executive Directors.

The Executive Directors of the Board participate in the Group’s
daily operation and management, monitoring the performance of
the senior management with reference to the approved planning
and objectives. The Non-executive Directors, although not involved
in the Group’s daily operation, provide the Group with valuable
suggestions and constructive ideas with regard to the Group’s
strategies and management. The three Independent Non-executive
Directors bring in independent judgment and advices for the
purpose of check and balance. One of the three Independent
Non-executive Directors possesses the necessary professional
qualification and expertise in accounting and financial management
and serves as the chairman of the Company’s audit committee.
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The biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 6
to 10 of this annual report. The composition of the Board and the
Committees of the Board are given below:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Chen Weirong (Chairman) (Chief Executive Officer and
member of Remuneration Committee)

Mr. Liao Jie

Mr. Xu Chuncheng

Non-Executive Directors:

Ms. Shuang Mei (member of Remuneration Committee)
Mr. Cheng Wusheng

Mr. Zhang Zhilin

Mr. Chen Hao

Independent Non-Executive Directors:

Mr. Chu Kin Wang, Peleus (Chairman of Audit Committee and
member of Remuneration Committee)

Mr. Liu Huanbin (Chairman of both Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee and member of Audit Committee)

Mr. Pan Wei (member of Audit Committee and Remuneration
Committee)

There is no financial, business, family or other material or relevant
relationship among the Directors. Pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules the three Independent Non-executive Directors have
affrmed their independence in the annual written declaration
submitted to the Company and the Company still considers all
Independent Non-executive Directors to be independent.

Responsibilities

The tasks of the Board include setting main objectives of the
Group and devising strategic planning for the development of the
Group’s business. The Board also defines the corporate values
and standards to ensure that the management and all other staff
carry out their works in good faith and in the best interest of
shareholders. Significant company’s activities like acquisition and
disposal transactions, connected transactions, investments and
capital expenditures are thoroughly discussed in the Board and
other committee meetings with contribution from the Independent
Non-executive Directors.

Duties of daily operation and execution of the Group’s plans
have been delegated to the Chief Executive Officer and
senior management and the Board constantly supervises the
management and monitors their performance in meeting the preset
goals and objectives.
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Appointments, Re-election and Removal of Directors

The Articles of Association of the Company clearly lay out the
proper procedures and process of appointment, re-election and
removal of directors. It also requires that at least one-third of the
directors for the time being shall retire from office by rotation at
each annual general meeting provided that every director shall
be subject to retirement at an annual general meeting at least
once every three years. A retiring director shall be eligible for re-
election at the annual general meeting. All Non-executive Directors
(including Independent Non-executive Directors) of the Company
have been appointed for a term of three years from the date of
their appointments. A nomination committee was set up in 2008
to perform the role and duty of nominating competent candidates
to join the Board. The Board from time to time reviews the
composition of the Board to ensure members of the Board have
sufficient expertise, knowledge and experience in directing the
business of the Group.

Board Committees

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three Independent Non-executive
Directors, namely, Mr. Chu Kin Wang, Peleus (Chairman of the
Audit Committee), Mr. Pan Wei and Mr. Liu Huanbin. The main
duties of the Committee are to review the financial statements and
financial and accounting policies of the Company and oversee
the Company’s financial reporting system and internal control
procedures.

During the year ended 31 December 2011 the Audit Committee
met twice and reviewed the financial results and re ports, financial
reporting and compliance procedures, report of the Company’s
internal control and risk management review and the re-
appointment of the external auditors. The Committee had not taken
a different view from that of the Board regarding the selection,
appointment, resignation or dismissal of the external auditors. The
Group’s annual results for the year ended 31 December 2011 had
been discussed, reviewed and approved by the Audit Committee.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises two Executive Directors,
namely Mr. Chen Weirong and Ms. Shuang Mei and three
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Liu Huanbin
(Chairman of the Committee), Mr. Pan Wei and Mr. Chu Kin Wang,
Peleus.

The primary objectives of the Remuneration Committee include
making recommendations on and approving the remuneration
policies and structure and remuneration packages of the directors
and senior management. The Remuneration Committee is also
responsible for establishing transparent procedures for developing
such remuneration policy and structure to ensure that no director
or any of his/her associates will participate in deciding his/her own
remuneration packages.
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During the year, the Remuneration Committee reviewed the
remuneration of the directors and senior management with
reference to the skill, knowledge, experience and the tasks
assigned and also to the individual performance and the overall
profitability of the Company. In determining the remuneration
package, the Remuneration Committee also obtained reports,
surveys and relevant information from external source for the
competitive level of remuneration and market trend for the
directors and senior management. The Remuneration Committee
formed an opinion that the current directors’ fee to the directors
and remuneration to the senior management for their duties and
responsibilities undertaken were commensurate with the market
level.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises two Independent Non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Liu Huanbin and Mr. Chu Kin
Wang, Peleus and an Executive Director Mr. Chen Weirong. The
major duty of the committee is to make recommendations to
the Board on the appointment or re-appointment of directors
according to the Articles of Association. The Nomination
Committee reviews the composition of the Board whenever
necessary to meet the business demands, opportunities and
challenges and to comply with the laws and regulations. The
Nomination Committee will select and evaluate the balance of skills,
qualification, knowledge and experience of the candidate to the
directorship as may be required by the Company from time to time
by such means as the Company may deems fit. The Nomination
Committee shall consider the candidate from a wide range of
backgrounds, on his/her merits and against objective criteria set
out by the Board and taking into consideration his/her time devoted
to the position and independence as independent non-executive
directors.

All newly appointed directors will be provided with an induction
so as to ensure that he/she has appropriate understanding of the
business and operations of the Group and of the responsibilities
and obligations under the Listing Rules and other relevant
regulatory requirements.
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Board Meeting

Regular board meetings are held for directors to discuss and
determine the strategies of the Group, monitor the execution of
plans, review the Group’s business performance and financial
reporting as well as all other material matters. Notice of the Board
meeting is given at 14 days in advance to all directors, and the
agenda of all related document are prepared and dispatched to
all directors by the company secretary at least 3 days before the
meeting to ensure all directors have sufficient information and
relevant material when preparing for the meetings. The company
secretary is responsible for preparing and keeping minutes of all
board and committee meetings. All directors have full access to

FEE®  BEREEL HFMESERIIERLZEE  the advice and services of the company secretary to ensure that
SEFH BT ¢ the Board procedures and all applicable rules and regulations are

followed. Details of directors’ attendance at the meetings of Board,

Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination

Committee during the year ended 31 December 2011 are set out

below:

HEEERE
BE-ZE——F+-A=+—HLEFE
Attendance/Number of meetings
for the year ended 31 December 2011
FHEES REZEE

BEEHR BEEY EXEZEE Remuneration Nomination
Name of Directors Board Audit Committee Committee Committee
PRIZEE L& 4/4 N3 A - -
Mr. Chen Weirong N/A
Feig+ 3/4 i A - TEA
Ms. Shuang Mei N/A N/A
B 4/4 N3 R T TiE A
Mr. Liao Jie N/A N/A N/A
REH S A 4/4 N3 R TiE TiE A
Mr. Xu Chuncheng N/A N/A N/A
BRAELE 2/4 TEMA i A TiE A
Mr. Cheng Wusheng N/A N/A N/A
sREMEE 0/4 i A iE A T EA
Mr. Zhang Zhilin N/A N/A N/A
RIS S 2/4 TEMA TEMA TE A
Mr. Chen Hao N/A N/A N/A
AERE 2/4 1/2 - NiE AR
Mr. Pan Wei N/A
UM e 2/4 2/2 - -
Mr. Liu Huanbin
KEERFTE 2/4 2/2 - -

Mr. Chu Kin Wang, Peleus

EYANG HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO., LIMITED
Annual Report 2011
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code states that the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual. The Company does not
have a separate chairman and chief Executive officer and Mr. Chen
Weirong currently holds both positions. The Board believes that
vesting the roles of both Chair man and Chief Executive Officer in
the same person provides the Group with strong and consistent
leadership, allows for more effective planning and execution of
long-term business strategies and enhances the efficiency of
decision-making process in response to the changing environment.

The three independent non-executive directors provide the Board
with independent judgment and views from different perspectives
and ensure that the interests of concerned par ties can be taken
into account and proper processes are followed to avoid possible
conflict of interests. The Board therefore believes that the Company
already has a strong corporate governance structure in place
with adequate check and balances. The Board from time to time
reviews the effectiveness and adequacy of the Group’s corporate
governance structure and performance so as to assess whether
any changes are necessary in the future.

Model Code for Dealing In Securities by Directors

The Company has adopted a code of conduct governing securities
transactions by directors on terms no less exacting than that
required under the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as contained in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Specific enquiry has been made
of each director of the Board, all directors confirm that they have
fully complied with the Model Code throughout the year ended 31
December 2011.
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Services rendered

FINANCIAL REPORTING AND AUDIT

Financial reporting

The Board, with the assistance by the Group’s Chief Financial
Officer, is responsible for overseeing the preparation of accounts
for each financial period with a view to ensuring such accounts
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of
the results and cash flow for that period. The Company’s accounts
are prepared in accordance with all relevant statutory requirements
and applicable accounting standards and the Board reviews
those accounting policies as selected and applied to ensure that
appropriate judgment and estimates be made in a prudent and
reasonable manner.

The statement of the external auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in
the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 41 to 42 of this annual
report.

Auditors’ Remuneration

Ernst & Young are primarily responsible for providing audit services
in connection with the annual consolidated financial statements.
During the year, the total remuneration payable to the Company’s
external auditor amounted to RMB1.14 million:

Bt ENER
Fee paid/payable

ZERT

Audit services

TR ERTS

Non-audit services

ARB114BETT
RMB1.14 million
i

nil

1BEr
Total

ARBA114BETT
RMB1.14 million

EYANG HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO., LIMITED
Annual Report 2011
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Internal Control

In late 2011 the Company noticed the business opportunities of
mobile phones trading with African nations. In order to seize the
opportunity of building up a profit generating segment that requires
less capital investment by the Group, the Company set up the
mobile phones trading business in a relatively short period of time
with limited input of manpower and resources. The inadequate
and insufficient supporting system deployed in the new business
segment has resulted in the findings as detailed in the auditors’
qualified opinion which has drawn the attention of the Board as
well as the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee has discussed
the matters thoroughly with the Auditors and the management of
the Company and concludes that the Company has to strengthen
the internal control of mobile phones trading business and improve
the documentation process. The Audit Committee will review and
advise on the future remedial measures taken by the management
of the Company.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company has adopted the policy of effective communication
with shareholders for promoting higher transparency of
the Company’s operation activities and greater investors’
understanding of the Company’s business. The Company’s
website contains up-to-date information on the Company’s
business developments. The practice of timely disclosures of
information with high degree of integrity is consistently observed
to allow shareholders and any other parties concerned to make
judgment.

The general meeting is the most important platform for
shareholders to express their views and ask questions about the
performance and policies of the Company, notices and circulars
regarding the annual general meeting and other general meetings
are given in well advance to ensure that shareholders have
sufficient time and information to prepare for the meetings.
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The Directors are pleased to present the annual report and the
audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2011.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and the
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 18 to the financial
statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2011 are
set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on
page 43.

No interim dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December
2011 was declared. The Board recommends no final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2011.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Tuesday, 19 June 2012 to Thursday, 21 June 2012 (both days
inclusive), during which period no transfer of shares will be
effected.

In order to be eligible to attend and vote at the forthcoming annual
general meeting, unregistered holders of shares of the Company
should lodge all share transfers, accompanied by the relevant share
certificates, with the Company’s branch share registrar and transfer
office in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, for registration not later
than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 18 June 2012.

RESERVES

Details of movements in reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year are set out in note 30 to the consolidated financial
statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The Company’s reserves available for distribution as at 31
December 2011 amounted to approximately RMB74,065,000
(2010: RMB37,107,000).
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment and fixed
assets of the Company are set out in note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of movements in share capital of the Company are set out
in note 28 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS
The current directors of the Company during the year and as of the
date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Chen Weirong (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Liao Jie

Mr. Xu Chuncheng

Non-executive Directors
Ms. Shuang Mei

Mr. Chen Hao

Mr. Cheng Wusheng

Mr. Zhang Zhilin

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Chu Kin Wang, Peleus

Mr. Pan Wei

Mr. Liu Huanbin

In accordance the Articles of Association of the Company, one-
third of the directors for the time being shall retire from office by
rotation at every annual general meeting of the Company. Pursuant
to Article 87(1), Mr. Chen Hao, Mr. Cheng Wusheng, and Mr. Pan
Wei shall retire from office by rotation at the forthcoming annual
general meeting and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-
election.

STATUS OF
DIRECTORS
The Company has received from each Independent Non-executive
Director an annual written confirmation with respect to his
independence pursuant to Rules 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the
Company still considers all Independent Non-executive Directors to
be independent.

INDEPENDENT OF NON-EXECUTIVE
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Executive Directors

Each Executive Director has entered into a service agreement with
the Company commencing on 21 December 2010 for a term of
3 years until termination by giving no less than 3 months’ written
notice to the other party or pursuant to the terms of the service
contract.

Non-executive Directors and
Directors

All' Non-executive Directors and Independent Non-executive
Directors have entered into a service agreement with the Company
for a term of 3 years commencing on 21 December 2010. The
engagement shall comply with the directors’ retirement and
rotation provisions in accordance with the Company’s articles of
association.

Independent Non-executive

Save as disclosed above, no director has a service contract with
the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is expiring within
one year or determinable by the employer within one year without
payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation). The
Company has no service contract with the directors with a term
of more than 3 years or not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid to the Company’s directors is determined
based on their respective terms of service agreement (if any). The
directors’ fee is reviewed annually and approved and authorized
by the shareholders at the annual general meeting. Details of
remuneration paid and to be paid to the Company’s directors for
the financial year ended 31 December 2011 are set out in note 8 to
the financial statements.

DIRECTORS’
SIGNIFICANCE
Save for the connected transactions as stated in the report, no
contracts of significance relating to the business of the Group to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in
which a director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The principles and practices of corporate governance of the
Company are set out under the section of “Corporate Governance
Report” on pages 21 to 28.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s articles of association or the laws of Cayman Islands
where the Company was incorporated, which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing
Shareholders of the Company.

BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS
The biographies of the directors and senior management are set
out on page 6 to page 10 in the report.

DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS

At 31 December 2011, the directors’ interests and short positions
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ”)) as recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the
“Model Code”) contained in the Listing Rules were as follows:

ZERHA
Number of ordinary shares
HERITRG
wER
BRES T
p ]| Approximate
BoEA® percentage of
BERER ARIER Number of total interests
EEHA Beneficial Corporate underlying e in the share
Name of Director Interests Interests shares © Total in issue
BRIZER T4 — 143,044,000 1,400,000 144,444,000 35.62%
Mr. Chen Weirong
et 424,000 18,000,000@ 1,300,000 19,724,000 4.86%
Ms. Shuang Mei
BT E — 18,000,000 1,300,000 19,300,000 4.76%
Mr. Liao Jie
TREABI ST A4 16,000,000 3,299,000¢ 2,000,000 21,299,000 5.25%
Mr. Xu Chuncheng
BRALE — 16,174,0000 — 16,174,000 3.99%
Mr. Cheng Wusheng
sREMITE — 23,106,000 — 23,106,000 5.70%

Mr. Zhang Zhilin

FheER(EE)BRAR
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1) PR 48 5 4 &A% A Eversharp  Management  Limited
([Eversharp)) B3 17x 2 100% - ifi Eversharp Bl &
JEMEBEY SHINE Management Limited ([EYShine])
BEITRAII% REKEENEGEESR
Everbright Management Limited 2 3177 53.15% -
il Everbright Management Limited BII# & EY Shine
B #1708 725 19.40% ° EY Shine&/A#ABEY Ocean
Management Limited ([EY Ocean])100% * M EY
Ocean # A AR 7] 143,044,000 R D - BEEH K
HEROIEXVIBME « RIZREZERKR AR EY Ocean
FENMERNPHEEER °

@) gzt A A#B HE-YANG Management Limited 2
EITHRAN100% + i1 HE-YANG Management Limited
A& A EY Shine 2 E{TA12.68% < EY Shine
ARAEY Ocean 100% - BiEZTtAMBERZRBLD
18,000,000 B &5 ©

@) B EASEHEA LI Management Limited B 31T
f¥7X100% * MLJ Management Limited BI& &S
EY Shine BE{TEA12.58% ° EY Shine & %#H EY
Ocean100% ° B4t 4 A i #5749 18,000,000 A%
&5 o

) TR ABE S A B X A Everbright B 37 TAX 2K 11.89% »
Everbright BIl# B EY Shine B 2774 419.40% ° E it -
T BER B AR A4 3,299,000 BRAE D °

(5) & L) A WUSHENG Management Limited Fr &
BRAELEHEEZAFEEITIRAMRIEREES 100% °

@] SELLRR(D A ZHILIN Management Limited A - 5R7&
MEEBEAZ AR D ETRAREEL 100%

7 ELRRA AR 2007 F 11 A 30 B FTERA S ERIERT 2
TR RS - BARES BFAER NN A
[EBRHERT ) —&f -

B EXATIREE SN - R2011F12A31H » #ER
RAEESEATERAB (BIRERBRISHEAT
FLOB B IR IR E AR R S E A EEAE
(EERBHALRHEEOIEXVER) D - 1EEK
BREHNERER AR

EYANG HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO., LIMITED
Annual Report 2011

Notes:

1) Mr. Chen Weirong legally owned 100% of the issued share capital of
Eversharp Management Limited (“Eversharp”), which in turn legally owned
36.71% of the issued share capital of EY SHINE Management Limited (“‘EY
Shine”). Mr. Chen Weirong also legally owned 53.15% of the issued share
capital of Everbright Management Limited which in turn owned 19.40% of the
issued share capital of EY Shine. EY Shine legally owned 100% of EY Ocean
Management Limited (“EY Ocean”) which was interested in 143,044,000
shares of the Company. For the purposes of Part XV of the SFO, Mr. Chen
Weirong was deemed to be interested in all the shares held by EY Ocean.

) Ms. Shuang Mei legally owned 100% of the issued share capital of HE-YANG
Management Limited, which in turn legally owned 12.58% of the issued share
capital of EY Shine. EY Shine legally owns 100% of EY Ocean. Ms. Shuang
Mei therefore was indirectly interested in approximately 18,000,000 shares.

()] Mr. Liao Jie legally owned 100% of the issued share capital of LJ
Management Limited, which in turn legally owned 12.58% of the issued share
capital of EY Shine. EY Shine legally owned 100% of EY Ocean. Mr. Liao Jie
therefore was indirectly interested in approximately 18,000,000 shares.

4) Mr. Xu Chuncheng legally owned 11.89% of the issued capital of Everbright
which in turn owns 19.40% of EY Shine, therefore Mr. Xu was indirectly
interested in approximately 3,299,000 shares of the Company.

(5) These shares were owned by WUSHENG Management Limited of which Mr.
Cheng Wusheng had 100% equity interest of the issued share capital.

) These shares were owned by ZHILIN Management Limited of which Mr.
Zhang Zhilin had 100% equity interest of the issued share capital.

(7) These represented interests in the share options granted under the share
option scheme adopted on 30 November 2007, further details of the share
option scheme are set out in the section “Share Option Scheme” hereof.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2011, none of the
directors nor the chief executives of the Company (including their
spouse and children under 18 years of age) had or was deemed
to have any interest or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO).
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BARRESENEREMREL - 12011412 531
B RIEEE NS KD 336K BFE N ELM
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS

So far as the directors and management of the Company were
aware, as at 31 December 2011, shareholders (other than the
directors and chief executive of the Company) who had an interest
or short position in the Company’s shares or underlying shares as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of
the SFO were as follows:

HEET
R4
AAt
g Approximate
BRHBEE  percentage of
BEREHE M EE Number of issued share
Name of Shareholder Notes shares held capital
BRIZER A 1 143,044,000 35.28%
Mr. Chen Weirong
EY Ocean Management Limited 1 143,044,000 35.28%
EY SHINE Management Limited 1 143,044,000 35.28%
Eversharp Management Limited 1 143,044,000 35.28%
Legend New-Tech Investment Limited 2 26,910,000 6.64%
Right Lane Limited 2 26,910,000 6.64%
PRI B R A A 2 26,910,000 6.64%
Legend Holding Limited*
TERMSBREAEELEARAT 2 26,910,000 6.64%
Chinese Academy of Sciences Interest of a controlled corporation*
BRI AR A B T RRE 2 26,910,000 6.64%
Employees’ Shareholding Society of Legend Holding Limited
FEIRSESE 3 20,795,000 5.13%
Mr. Li Heqiu
HEQ Management Limited 20,795,000 5.13%
REMIELE 23,106,000 5.70%
Mr. Zhang Zhilin
ZHILIN Management Limited 4 23,106,000 5.70%

* EHET)

* For identification purposes only

FheER(EE)BRAR
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1. 5% % KN R 7] 2 143,044,000 % & i ¥ REY Ocean
Management Limited ([EYOcean]) B & # A ° EY
Ocean J5EY Shine Management Limited ([ EY Shine])
2 2 & F A\l Eversharp Management Limited
([Eversharp |) B 25 A EY Shine B %17 ZANH)36.71%
- (REY ShineBERXRAERG=HD2— A E-
Eversharp MR A#EBEY OceaniFBMFTA IR
MR RARRITEESRERREREEERESR
Eversharp 2 21T ARNHI100% 155 © BLaEH M ERE 150
EXVESME * FRIZEE T EIR A Eversharp £ 8 HIFT
B PHAER ©

2. Legend New-Tech Investment Limited ([ Legend New-
Tech]) B i B 42 7]26,910,000 f% J& 15 ° Legend
New-Tech 7F & Right Lane Limited ([Right Lanel)Z
2EF AR o BBERBRAREEMERight Lane
Limited B B /TARA50% + MIEAMEETEX = A%
ARight Lane Limited B #/TRART 50% © H{EE
TEARKRIEERARARMNETAIFARIght Lane
Limited B B fTAR A 25% © 3R A8 1 1E B R R B A8 1 AR
BRAFTMEFEAZEARIght Lane Limited B 27 7REA
25% - FERIEREAEELEBRA R E = KB
RERAERAREETRNDBER 6% - BEERE
BARBIFRGEEZHEAHRT 35% WEEITRMD

3. ZA A BB AR R 20,795,000 B 1D - sk ARIH
RIEREBIRAEAHS 100% o 28 BRI A4 4 5 s
AARFES  FER2010F5 831 BBHZARE]
REAF KRG EREFRIT ©

4. 2N A B 25 AN A F) 23,106,000 K AL (D © 3% A A
AR AIENITE BREME LA 100% °

B EXFrBEEIN - RRRAAREIEHRBAER
Hi A TRAR BRI BB + B AR
ARBIMBRFAELERE  RARBESLHME
{ER P15 336 1R E 1+ B #) B " PrRc sk R s 30K
B HERARFTNEIERR(ERR LR

) -

EYANG HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO., LIMITED
Annual Report 2011

Notes:

These 143,044,000 ordinary shares in the Company were beneficially owned
by EY Ocean Management Limited (“EY Ocean”). EY Ocean was a wholly
owned subsidiary of EY Shine Management Limited (“EY Shine”). Eversharp
Management Limited (“Eversharp”) was beneficially interested in 36.71% of
the issued capital of EY Shine, representing more than one-third of voting
shares in EY Shine. Eversharp was therefore deemed to be interested in all
the shares held by EY Ocean. Mr. Chen Weirong, the executive director and
chairman of the Company, was beneficially interested in 100% of issued
capital of Eversharp. For the purposes of Part XV of the SFO, Mr. Chen
Weirong was deemed to be interested in all the shares held by Eversharp.

Legend New-Tech Investment Limited (“Legend New-Tech”) was beneficially
interested in 26,910,000 shares of the Company. Legend New-Tech was also
a wholly-owned subsidiary of Right Lane Limited (“Right Lane”). B 8128 AR
‘A7) (Legend Holding Limited*) legally owned 50% of the issued share capital
of Right Lane Limited and also owned the remaining 50% of the issued share
capital of Right Lane Limited as a beneficiary of two trusts. Liu Chuanzhi was
holding 25% of the issued share capital of Right Lane Limited as a trustee
for and on behalf of Legend Holding Limited. Zhang Zuxiang was holding
25% of the issued share capital of Right Lane Limited as a trustee for and on
behalf of Legend Holding Limited. A Bl £ [B A & E 4L & B R A 7] (Chinese
Academy of Sciences Holdings Co., Ltd.*) beneficially owned 65% of the total
issued shares of B1812 A% AR A 7] (Legend Holding Limited®) and B 832 A%
BIRAEE T %S Employees’ Shareholding Society of Legend Holding
Limited®) legally owned the remaining 35% of the issued shares.

The company, which beneficially owned the 20,795,000 shares of the
Company, was 100% owned by a former director Mr. Li Heqiu who did not
seek re-election as a director of the Company and resigned from his office
upon the conclusion of the annual general meeting of the Company held on
31 May 2010.

The company, which beneficially owned the 23,106,000 shares of the
Company, was 100% owned by Mr. Zhang Zhilin, a non-executive director of
the Company.

Save as disclosed above, the Company had not been notified
of any other person who had an interest or short position in

the Company’s shares or underlying shares which would fall to

be disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange and as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of

the SFO, or was otherwise a substantial shareholder (as such term

is defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Summaries of the share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) adopted by all shareholders of the Company on 30
November 2007 are set out in note 29 to the financial statements.

Particulars of the movement of options granted under the Share
Option Scheme during the year ended 31 December 2011 were as
follows:

R2011 %
B20115 12317
1A18 HAR{TE
HRITE il il il REE  Outstanding
RERSHENERAE SRAHEE  Outstanding REH R ARk aRE] as at
il Exercise as at Granted  Exercised Forfeited  Cancelled 31 TEH
Name or category of Riti B price 1 January during during during during  December Exercise
eligible participants  Date of grant per share 2011  theperiod  theperiod  theperiod  the period 2011 period
B2
Directors
RERELE 200851 A 2208 105287 1,400,000 - - - - 1,400,000 :
Mr. Chen Weirong 22 January 2008 HK$1.052 '
BT 2008F 1A 22F 1.052%TT 1,300,000 - - - - 1,300,000 !
Ms. Shuang Mei 22 January 2008 HK$1.052 *
BERE 2008 1 A22H 105287 1,300,000 - - - - 1,300,000 *
Mr. Liao Jie 22 January 2008 HK$1.052 *
It 4,000,000 - 4,000,000
Sub-total
BREBAR EAR
AftaERSEE
(BE) 200841 f22H 1.052%7 14,400,000 - - 1,200,000 - 13,200,000 !
Senior management,
Employees and
Other qualifying
participants (in
aggregate) 22 January 2008 HK$1.052 *
my
Total 18,400,000 - 1,200,000 - 17,200,000

© HER2HNUBRERAZME29 -

*  Please refer to note 29 to the financial statements for details.
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EYANG HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO., LIMITED
Annual Report 2011

ARRANGEMENT TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the above share option scheme, at no time during the
year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries or the holding
companies of the Company or any subsidiaries of its holdings
companies a party to any arrangements to enable the directors
of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS
The Company’s directors had no interests in any business that may
compete with the Group’s business.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the directors, the Company has
confirmed that it has maintained a sufficient public float in the
market as at the date of the report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,
sold or redeemed shares of the Company during the year ended 31
December 2011.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

During the vyear, the Company had no contract entered into
in respect of the management or administration of the overall
business or any material business.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION
The directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption
available to the Shareholders of the Company by reason of their
holding of the Company’s securities.
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RAFE - AEBEITAS (REBEERSRE R
Rz R [BES DETETRS - WEBES
RPZHBHENRMBHRRMEIL - —LZERH
TIER ETARADETH [BER S | - F1E#H5Im
-

BEMRS

RAFE  FINFEEEEFR AR (RINERE D)
(ApalzzEWBRAR) BRYITMERRRAR
Aal([FRYIEE]) (EMRANE14AZTE T 2 —%F
BER)FIV RS  AFIIEBREREOA
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
During the year, the percentage of purchases from the major
suppliers of the Group to total purchases of the Group is as follow:

Percentage of purchases from the largest supplier

of the Group to total purchases: 32.75%
Percentage of purchases from top five suppliers
of the Group to total purchases 57.78%

No directors nor their associates have interests in the above
suppliers.

During the year, the percentage of sales from the major customers
of the Group to the total sales of goods and services of the Group

is as follows:

Percentage of sales from the largest customer of

the Group to total sales of goods and services 12.91%
Goods and services sold by the Group
to its top five customers during the year 39.18%

None of the directors, nor their associates or any shareholders
holding more than 5% of the share capital of the Company has an
interest in the customers referred to above.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year the Group entered into certain transactions with
parties which were considered as “Related Parties” under the
applicable accounting principles and standards. Details of those
related parties transactions are set out in note 34 to the financial
statement. Some of these transactions also constitute “Connected
Transactions” under the Listing Rules with details as listed below:

Non-recurring transaction

During the year the Company’s wholly owned subsidiary Shenzhen
Eyang Technology Co., Limited (“Shenzhen Eyang”) entered into
a transaction with Shenzhen Eycom Technology Company Limited
(“SZ Eycom”), a connected party under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules, to procure and import RMB13,112,250 production materials
for SZ Eycom, for which Shenzhen Eyang charges a service fees of
0.3% of the total purchase price. The total revenue generated from
the transaction amounted to RMB39,000, constituting a connected
transaction which requires no announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval under the Listing Rules.

FheER(EE)BRAR
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Continuing connected transactions

On 4 September 2009, SZ Eyang entered into new leasing
agreements with respect to the premises occupied by SZ Eycom.
On the same date SZ Eyang and SZ Eycom entered a purchase
agreement with respect to the supply of MLCC products by SZ
Eyang to SZ Eycom. Both the new leasing agreements and MLCC
supply agreement took effect upon the completion of disposal
of SZ Eycom by the Company in October 2009. The directors,
including the independent non-executive directors, were of the
view that the terms of the new leasing agreements and MLCC
supply agreement were in normal commercial terms and in ordinary
and usual course of business of the Company. The above leasing
agreements and MLCC supply agreement fall under the definition
of continuing connected transactions pursuant to the Listing Rules
and the maximum aggregate annual cap of the leasing agreements
and MLCC supply agreement is RMB3,572,328, which is below
2.5% of the applicable percentage ratios and therefore subject to
reporting and announcement requirements only in accordance with
Rule 14A.34 of the Listing Rules.

KEERIFE LR Proposed annual caps
BE+-A=1+—HLEE
For the year ended 31 December
—EEAE —E2-EF —E——F
2009 2010 2011
ARETT AREFT ARKETTT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
T E R New leasing agreements 216.7 866.9 866.9
MLCC & thh 7 MLCC supply agreement 743.9 2,705.4 2,447.7
HEt Total 960.6 3,572.3 3,314.6

EYANG HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO., LIMITED
Annual Report 2011
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As at 31 December 2011, the total rental paid under the new
leasing agreements and total purchase by SZ Eycom under
the MLCC supply agreement was approximately RMB867,000
and RMB2,119,000 respectively (2010: RMB867,000 and
RMB2,660,000 respectively).

Pursuant to the Rule 14A.37 of the Listing Rules the independent
non-executive directors of the Company have reviewed the above
continuing connected transactions and are of the opinion that the
above continuing connected transactions have been (i) carried
out in the usual and ordinary course of business of the Group; (ii)
conducted on normal commercial terms; and (i) entered into in
accordance with the terms of the respective agreements.

The Company’s auditor has issued a report in accordance with
Practice Note 740 Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants that the above-
stated continuing connected transactions (i) have been approved
by the Board of the Company; (i) have been entered into on
terms of the agreement of relevant transactions; and (i) have not
exceeded any caps as set out in the agreements as mentioned
hereabove between SZ Eyang and SZ Eycom.

AUDITORS

A resolution for the re-appointment of Ernst & Young as auditor of
the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

On behalf of the Board
Chen Weirong
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 March 2012
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To the shareholders of EYANG Holdings (Group) Co., Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of EYANG
Holdings (Group) Co., Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group”) set out on pages 43 to 124, which
comprise the consolidated and company statements of financial
position as at 31 December 2011, and the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. Our report is made solely
to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors
consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

i
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified audit opinion.

The Group was engaged in a new business segment during
the year comprising the trading of mobile phones (the “Mobile
Phone Business”) with two foreign enterprises in Africa (the
“Africa Customers”). During the year, in respect of the Mobile
Phone Business, the Group recorded revenue and segment
profit of RMB124,128,000 and RMB5,567,000, respectively,
and corresponding trade receivables with carrying amount of
RMB25,249,000 at 31 December 2011. We were unable to
obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence about the sales of
mobile phones to the Africa Customers and the corresponding
trade receivables because () there was inadequate documentary
evidence available for us to verify the identity of the Africa
Customers and the delivery of mobile phones; (i) there was no
satisfactory explanation provided to us to explain the reason for
the cash received by the Group totaling RMB98,879,000 during
the year and RMB25,249,000 subsequent to 31 December 2011
being transacted through intermediates for the settlement of the
recorded sale transactions; (i) we were unable to carry out any
effective confirmation procedure in relation to the above sales of
mobile phones for the purpose of our audit and (iv) there were
no alternative audit procedures that we could perform to satisfy
ourselves as to whether the above transactions and balances
recorded under the Mobile Phone Business were free from material
misstatement. Any adjustments found to be necessary may have
an effect on the Group’s trade receivables as at 31 December
2011, the Group’s revenue and consequently net profit for the year
ended 31 December 2011, and the related disclosures thereof in
the consolidated financial statements.

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the matter
described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph, the
consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31
December 2011, and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
22/F CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue, Central

Hong Kong
30 March 2012
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

HEZT——F+ZH=1—HLEFE Year ended 31 December 2011
—E——fF —E-EF
2011 2010
Bt & ARETT ARETT
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
WA REVENUE 5 481,402 396,298
SHE R A Cost of sales (417,333) (308,350)
EH Gross profit 64,069 87,948
E bl A K sk Other income and gains 5 11,516 7,405
SHE R $HACA Selling and distribution costs (13,104) (10,341)
THE M Administrative expenses (27,150) (18,241)
HhFR % Other expenses (2,482) (7,601)
BhE R AR Finance costs 6 (8,924) (7,101)
7% K B EE A A Research and development costs 7 (7,158) (9,363)
R A1 R PROFIT BEFORE TAX 7 16,767 42,706
FriS it X Income tax expense 10 (2,211) (8,751)
2 HE PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 14,556 33,955
Hitt 2 E WS OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
MEBINETEH Exchange difference on translation of
bE X ZE5E foreign operations 2,758 1,766
FEZHMKSERE TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME FOR THE YEAR 17,314 35,721
LA AR Profit for the year attributable to:
[SYNEIETZE PN Owners of the parent 11 14,556 33,955
ATATEEZE Total comprehensive income
WS HaER attributable to:
ISYNEIEZZEIN Owners of the parent 11 17,314 35,721
FRAREBERRE EARNINGS PER SHARE
EAEG ATTRIBUTABLE TO
sRER ORDINARY EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE PARENT
2K Basic 13 AR¥RMB AR RMB
3.61licents 8.4l cents
e Diluted 13 3.6l cents 8.41ll cents

EYANG HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO., LIMITED

Annual Report 2011
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

—E——F+=H=-+—H 31 December 2011

—2-—%| —T-TF
t+t=B=+-8 |[t=A=t—8
31 December 31 December
2011 2010
Bd5E AR®TF T ARET T
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
FRBEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS

M - BB NRE Property, plant and equipment 14 294,183 263,854
WEYE Investment properties 15 26,277 29,671
TH A E TR A Prepaid land lease payments 16 20,829 21,317

g2/ E S =5 Deposits paid for acquisition of property,

FtEFT RS plant and equipment 5,696 —
HEmEpEE Other intangible assets 17 1,197 1,369
FIEFIAE E Deferred tax assets 19 2,702 2,342
EmBIEERE Total non-current assets 350,884 318,553
REBEE CURRENT ASSETS
rE Inventories 20 103,062 104,421
JEWE ZERF M EWESE  Trade and bills receivables 21 156,680 153,099
TENFUE ek Prepayments, deposits and

E At R YUK other receivables 22 24,276 12,791
FEUR BAE T ) R IE Due from related parties 34(3) 6,739 6,910
PESBMT A Derivative financial instruments 161 =
[REEEESN Pledged deposits 23 125,772 18,120
HeRBRSEEY Cash and cash equivalents 23 65,887 48,481
MENEEEE Total current assets 482,577 343,822
REEE CURRENT LIABILITIES
JENE ZERFEENEE  Trade and bills payables 24 69,439 57,582
FEWA - FEFTE F Deferred income, accruals and

N E A FE AN R other payables 25 36,280 33,208
JERTAR IR Tax payable 12,703 14,948
sHRIRTTER Interest-bearing bank loans 27 261,590 110,666
FERAEE Dividends payable 256 171
BB EERE Total current liabilities 380,268 216,570
RENE EFE NET CURRENT ASSETS 102,309 127,252
EEAERREBARS TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT

LIABILITIES 453,193 445,805

FHER(EBR)ARRA

—T——FFR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

—ZT——4%F+=-H=+—H 31 December 2011

—ZE——F —EF-FF
+=A=+—R |+—A=1+—H
31 December 31 December
2011 2010
o ARET T ARETTT
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
FRBEE NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
EIEUTA Deferred income 26 3,193 3,468
EEFIABE Deferred tax liabilities 19 5,605 5,067
EMBEEERE Total non-current liabilities 8,798 8,535
BEFE Net assets 444,395 437,270
B EQUITY
BATHEE AELERS Equity attributable to owners of
the parent
BRI TR A Issued capital 28 3,824 3,824
(] Reserves 30(a) 440,571 423,207
¥R AR HAR% B Proposed final dividend 12 - 10,239
EEs Total equity 444,395 437,270
BRiZE&E HRETH
Chen Weirong Xu Chuncheng
EE EE
Director Director

EYANG HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO., LIMITED

Annual Report 2011
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SREREZBBH X
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

HE_ZT—F+-_A=+—HI-FE Year ended 31 December 2011

BAREEAERER
Attributable to owners of the parent
ki ERE EXR9 B
B&fT  HER fifh fith AERE
&  Share BH&E&  Share Exchange E#EF Proposed
Issued  premium Contributed option fluctuation  Retained final R

capital  account  surplus  reserve  reserve profits  dividend Total equity
ARBTT ARETR ARBTR ARMTT ARMTR ARETR ARETR ARETR
RVB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

(fiizt28) (FiE29)
(note 28) (note 29)
R2010E1 A1 At 1 January 2010 3,824 104,657 198,939 4797 (1562 90,167 9273 410,095
FRIENGEE Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - 1766 33955 - %7
EntEERERH(E20) Equity-settled share option
arrangements (note 29) - - - 721 - - - 721
BRI E Share options forfeited - - - (480) - 480 - -
SIR2000FFERHRE Final 2009 dividend declared - - - - - - 021 P2y
BR00EERSRE(ME12)  Proposed final 2010 diidend (note 12) = = = - - {10289 10239 =
R2010512A31 AR
01151810 At 31 December 2010 and 1 January 2011 3,824 104,657 198,939 5,044 204 114,363° 10,239 437,270
FRIENGEE Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - 2758 14556 - 17314
EntEERERH(E20) Equity-settled share option
arrangements (note 29) - - - 50 - - - 50
B ialE Share options forfeited - - - (309) - 309 - -
ER2010EERHRE Final 2010 dividend declared - - - - - - (10239 (10,239
R2011E12A31A At 31 December 2011 3,824 104,657 198,939 4,785 2,962* 129,228 - 444395
ZERERBBEGEMBRARF ZREREEAR These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of
# 440,571,000 7T.(20104F : AR¥ 423,207,0007T) © RMB440,571,000 (2010: RMB423,207,000) in the consolidated statement of

financial position.

FEER(EE)GRAA
—T——FFR



GERTRERXR
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HE—_ZT——F+-_A=+—H 1% E Year ended 31 December 2011

—E——F —E-EF
2011 2010
Bt & AR¥T R ARETT
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
RETHEEZ CASH FLOWS FROM
HERE OPERATING ACTIVITIES
B A5 B A Profit before tax 16,767 42,706
g Adjustments for:
BMEKA Finance costs 6 8,924 7,101
HRATA S UA Bank interest income 5 (1,179) 279)
N EW R Fair value gains, net:
- PTETERRFE Derivative instruments
ERHE IS — transactions not qualifying
as hedges 5 (161) -
e Depreciation 14/15 28,891 26,473
R AE Recognition of prepaid
T FOE land lease payments 16 488 488
EH A Amortisation of intangible assets 17 172 172
EUWE ZERFORE Impairment/(reversal of impairment) of
/CRiERm) trade receivables 21 (801) 134
I ERE Provisions against slow-moving
inventories 20 1,732 2,454
EnEEERERS Equity-settled share option expense 29 50 727
54,883 79,976
FE /L, (Em) Decrease/(increase) in inventories (373) 6,974
JE UK B 5 BR 2 % FE UK Increase in trade and bills receivables
FREM (2,780) (26,654)
TE IR « ke REAM Increase in prepayments,
JE W R 0 deposits and other receivables (10,704) (3,018)
FENR FAE T FIE Decrease/(increase) in amounts due
() from related parties 171 (3,927)
FERTE SRR R FERT Increase/(decrease) in trade and
=M CRd) bills payables 11,857 (24,789)
IRIEWA ~ FESTFIA K Increase in deferred income, accruals
A FE S FRIEE AN and other payables 4,727 4,771
TEIET AR Decrease in deferred income (25) (806)
KEEEZIRE Cash generated from operations 57,756 32,527
BUFIE Interest received 398 279
JEAST R B AR IR PRC tax paid (4,277) (2,249)
LR EA Net cash flows from operating
ZREMEFHE activities 53,877 30,557

EYANG HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO., LIMITED

Annual Report 2011
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GERTRERXR
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HE—_ZT—F+-A=1+—H1-%E Year ended 31 December 2011

—E——fF —E-EF
2011 2010
Bt & AR¥T R ARETT
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
KETEBIEL Net cash flows from operating
ZHEREFR activities 53,877 30,557
RETEELZ CASH FLOWS FROM
HERE INVESTING ACTIVITIES
BEMZE  BER Purchases of items of property, plant and
FiHIEE equipment (62,897) (56,834)
KEESFTRAZER® Net cash flows used in investing
mEFRE activities (62,897) (56,834)
RMEEESEEZ CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING
RERE ACTIVITIES
FERITERK New bank loans 381,166 186,443
BT BIRITENK Repayment of interest-bearing bank loans (230,242) (139,628)
2RFLE Interest paid (9,449) (8,092)
AR Dividends paid (10,154) (9,273)
EARARRITEFUE N Increase in pledged bank (107,245) -
EREARRAZIHH Increase in non-pledged bank deposits with
B33 3 fE A 2 AR original maturity of over three months
HRITIF RGN when acquired (13,427) =
BEESEA RS Net cash flows from financing activities
ME PR 10,649 29,450
ReRASEEYZ NET INCREASE IN CASH
N E R AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 1,629 3,173
FUIZRERREE Cash and cash equivalents at
BY) beginning of year 66,101 61,162
SNEBE R BB 2 o2 Effect of foreign exchange rate
FER changes, net 2,757 1,766
FREZAERRS CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
ZEY AT END OF YEAR 70,487 66,101
RERREEEY ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND
RO CASH EQUIVALENTS
RE MIRTTHE R Cash and bank balances 23 65,887 48,481
EBAREREAZHBA TR Pledged bank deposits with original
318 A 2 BRI/ maturity of less than three months
when acquired 23 4,600 17,620
REEAIRERERYIEZ  Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the
HeRBESEEYD consolidated statement of cash flows 70,487 66,101

FhEERk(EE)BRAR
—T——FFR
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

—ZT——4%F+=-H=+—H 31 December 2011

—2-—%| -T-TF
2011 2010
B aE AR¥T T AREFTT
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
FEREBEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
LE Y Property, plant and equipment 11 17
RIFBA R 21&E Investments in subsidiaries 18 365,000 365,000
EMBENEERE Total non-current assets 365,011 365,017
REBEE CURRENT ASSETS
TERZRIA ~ Ze R HA Prepayments, deposits
JE Ui R T and other receivables 22 68 72
NG E Due from subsidiaries 18 96,869 70,005
He MIRITHE R Cash and bank balances 23 378 383
mBEERE Total current assets 97,315 70,460
b =R CURRENT LIABILITIES
H fth FE N SRR FEET5RIE Other payables and accruals 25 1,241 1,026
FERTAR B Dividend payable 84 -
FERIBI B A RlZkIE Due to subsidiaries 18 23,275 19,793
mEBERE Total current liabilities 24,600 20,819
REBEEFE NET CURRENT ASSETS 72,715 49,641
BESE Net assets 437,726 414,658
B EQUITY
BETARA Issued capital 28 3,824 3,824
bt Reserves 30(b) 433,902 400,595
FER AR EARR B Proposed final dividends 12 - 10,239
BrEa Total equity 437,726 414,658
BRiZEEE BRETEH
Chen Weirong Xu Chuncheng
E=a E=a
Director Director

EYANG HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO., LIMITED

Annual Report 2011
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Company (Cayman) Limited Z ¥ 55z -
H3k 4 Cricket  Square, Hutchins Drive,
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BRE o
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ANA 7] AEY OCEAN Management Limited
([EY OCEAN] @ REBEZ A S ML
ZAaE]) 2B AT - EEHREY OCEAN &
AR R Z AR AT o
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EYANG Holdings (Group) Co., Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 6 March 2007 as
an exempted company with limited liability in the Cayman
Islands under the Companies Law, Chapter 22 (Law 3
of 1961, as consolidated and revised). The Company’s
registered office address is the office of Codon Trust
Company (Cayman) Limited, Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive,
PO Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands,
and the head office and the principal place of business of
the Company are located at EYANG Building, No.3 Qimin
Street, No. 2 Langshan Road, North Area, Hi-Tech Industrial
Park, Nanshan District, Shenzhen, the PRC.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Details of the principal activities of the subsidiaries are set
out in note 18 to these financial statements.

The Company is a subsidiary of EY OCEAN Management
Limited (“EY OCEAN”), a company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands. EY OCEAN is considered by the
directors as the Company’s ultimate holding company.

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(“IFRSs”), which comprise standards and interpretations
approved by the International Accounting Standards Board
(the “IASB”), and the International Accounting Standards
and Standing Interpretations Committee Interpretations
approved by the International Accounting Standards
Committee that remain in effect, and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
These financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention and financial statements are
presented in Renminbi (“RMB”) and all values are rounded
to the nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

FEER(EE)BRARQ A
T FFR
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T——&+— §=+—H 31 December 2011
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2.1

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2011. The financial statements of the subsidiaries are
prepared for the same reporting period as the Company,
using consistent accounting policies. The results of
subsidiaries are consolidated from the date of acquisition,
being the date on which the Group obtains control, and
continue to be consolidated until the date that such
control ceases. All intra-group balances, transactions,
and unrealised gains and losses resulting from intra-group
transactions and dividends are eliminated on consolidation
in full.

Total comprehensive income within a subsidiary is attributed
to the non-controlling interest even if that results in a deficit
balance.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a
loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises
() the assets (including goodwil) and liabilities of the
subsidiary, (i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling
interest and (iiij the cumulative translation differences
recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair value of the
consideration received, (i) the fair value of any investment
retained and (i) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit
or loss. The Group’s share of components previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified to
profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate.

o1
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RZF——F+=H=+—H 31 December 2011

22 EFBXRREEZ®H

AEBERBEANFEY B RREBRR
T HIER] RAERT BRI RS 2R

BIFR B 155 RIS 1 SR (ERTA)

IFRS 1 Amendment

RE R RIS 24 5% (KERT)

IAS 24 (Revised)

R ETERIE 3258 (IBFTA)

IAS 32 Amendment

B BHRERERE 85

F145R(BETA)
IFRIC 14 Amendments

BERMHRE2ERE SR

E195%
IFRIC 19

2010 F BRI 7548 & 2B Rl 2 202
Improvements to IFRSs 2010

BRUOTXHE—SMEEERERE:
Fo45R (15T R BB B 15 s A 5
35% - BRI 15 - ER SRR
BT RBEETERERELZECRES
135R 2B 5T (B8R 2010 F BB 8] 75k &

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND
DISCLOSURES
The Group has adopted the following new and revised
IFRSs for the first time for the current year’'s financial
statements.

PR B 75 S 5 M RIS 1 5 B N ERAN BTN BT S 3R 25 2 Rl — B X ER A&
BEF LR BIR A TSR 2ERE 7 i H B BB ARAEZAER]

Amendment to IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial
Reporting Standards — Limited Exemption from Comparative IFRS 7
Disclosures for First-time Adopters

A 1 1775

Related Party Disclosures

B S ERE e/ T A - 25— BRI ZIER]

Amendment to IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation —
Classification of Rights Issues

BRI R ERBEEERBR 14 RREESHEZ BN HEZERT

Amendments to IFRIC 14 Prepayments of a Minimum Funding
Requirement

BiTHEm TAXAHTHEAE

Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity Instruments
20104 5 AR 2 & TR BHRELER 2 EFT
Amendments to a number of IFRSs issued in May 2010

A H| Other than as further explained below regarding the impact

7

of IAS 24 (Revised), and amendments to IFRS 3, IAS 1, IAS
27 and IFRIC 13 included in Improvements to IFRSs 2010,
the adoption of the new and revised IFRSs has had no
significant financial effect on these financial statements.

BAZHET) ZHEIN  RMZEHR] R
RENE BT BIR B 75 i o5 ZE R 4B % F 7S

BRELBAVBRE -

FhEERk(EE)BRAR
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The principal effects of adopting these IFRSs are as follows:

(@)

IAS 24 (Revised) Related Party Disclosures

IAS 24 (Revised) clarifies and simplifies the definitions
of related parties. The new definitions emphasise
a symmetrical view of related party relationships
and clarify the circumstances in which persons and
key management personnel affect related party
relationships of an entity. The revised standard also
introduces an exemption from the general related
party disclosure requirements for transactions with
a government and entities that are controlled, jointly
controlled or significantly influenced by the same
government as the reporting entity. The accounting
policy for related parties has been revised to reflect
the changes in the definitions of related parties under
the revised standard. The adoption of the revised
standard did not have any impact on the financial
position or performance of the Group. Details of
the related party transactions, including the related
comparative information, are included in note 34 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Improvements to IFRSs 2070 issued in May 2010
sets out amendments to a number of IFRSs.
There are separate transitional provisions for
each standard. While the adoption of some of the
amendments results in changes in accounting
policies, none of these amendments has had a
significant financial impact on the financial position
or performance of the Group. Details of the key
amendments most applicable to the Group are as
follows:

° IFRS 3 Business Combinations: The
amendment clarifies that the amendments
to IFRS 7, IAS 32 and IAS 39 that eliminate
the exemption for contingent consideration
do not apply to contingent consideration that
arose from business combinations whose
acquisition dates precede the application of
IFRS 3 (as revised in 2008).
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2.2

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(b)

(continued)

In addition, the amendment limits the
scope of measurement choices for non-
controlling interests. Only the components
of non-controlling interests that are present
ownership interests and entitle their holders
to a proportionate share of the acquiree’s
net assets in the event of liquidation are
measured at either fair value or at the present
ownership instruments’ proportionate share of
the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other
components of non-controlling interests are
measured at their acquisition date fair value,
unless another measurement basis is required
by another IFRS.

The amendment also added explicit guidance
to clarify the accounting treatment for non-
replaced and voluntarily replaced share-based
payment awards.

IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements:
The amendment clarifies that an analysis of
each component of other comprehensive
income can be presented either in the
statement of changes in equity or in the notes
to the financial statements. The Group elects
to present the analysis of each component of
other comprehensive income in the statement
of changes in equity.

IAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements: The amendment clarifies that
the consequential amendments from IAS 27
(as revised in 2008) made to IAS 21, IAS 28
and IAS 31 shall be applied prospectively for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2009 or earlier.
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IFRS 1 Amendments
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IFRS 1 Amendments
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IFRS 7 Amendments
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IFRS 7 Amendments
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IFRS 9
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IFRS 10
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IFRS 11
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IFRS 12

BHRREA 5 ¥R 5 A 1358
IFRS 13
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IAS 1 Amendments
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IAS 12 Amendments
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IAS 32 Amendments
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IAS 19 Amendments

BIRR &5t RIS 27 SR (&fEET)
IAS 27 Revised

BIBR = ET2ERI5E 28 57 (K2{ERT)
IAS 28 Revised

BRMEHRE2EREeREF 205

IFRIC 20
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ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

these financial statements.

B PR B 745 S 25 AE R 56 1 SR By A ERAN B B B 75 2 25 2E Rl —
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Amendment to IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial
Reporting Standards — Severe Hyperinflation and Removal of
Fixed Dates for First-time Adopter’

Bl R Bt 765 e 5 AR R 55 1 5% BT AR A B B Y 5 25 2B Rl — T Bk 2 AE 5T

Amendment to IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial
Reporting Standards — Government Loans*

BRI S EERNE 7SR @ LA - HF i EomEE 255

Amendments to IFRS 7 Financial Instruments:
Disclosures — Transfers of Financial Assets’

BRI S ERE 7R M TA - FFE— Az m
BEREHAEIIER!

Amendments to IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures —
Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities*

T TAS

Financial Instruments®

=g =

Consolidated Financial Statements*

B

Joint Arrangements*

HERME

Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities*

NP EEFE

Fair Value Measurement*

BIRt 2 s BB SR B K 2 25 —
EmEEK=EE 2 Z2521857°

Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements —
Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive Income®

Bl St R FE 1257757 — L FHE - WEIIHEE E 2 (ER] 2

Amendments to IAS 12 Income Taxes — Deferred Tax: Recovery
of Underlying Assets?

Bl ERE 2R 25— EERZFE F 1B °

Amendments to IAS 32 Presentation — Offsetting financial Assets And
Financial Liabilities®

1ES &7

Employee Benefits*

EEAVAL b =

Separate Financial Statements*

RIBERAIRE &N A RE !

Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures*

FBRELEE RS SR

Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface Mine*

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
IFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in
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INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2011
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2012
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015

® o » © Np o=

Further information about those changes that are expected
to significantly affect the Group is as follows:

IFRS 9 issued in November 2009 is the first part of phase
1 of a comprehensive project to entirely replace IAS 39
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. This
phase focuses on the classification and measurement of
financial assets. Instead of classifying financial assets into
four categories, an entity shall classify financial assets as
subsequently measured at either amortised cost or fair
value, on the basis of both the entity’s business model for
managing the financial assets and the contractual cash
flow characteristics of the financial assets. This aims to
improve and simplify the approach for the classification
and measurement of financial assets compared with the
requirements of IAS 39.

In November 2010, the IASB issued additions to IFRS 9 to
address financial liabilities (the “Additions”) and incorporated
in IFRS 9 the current derecognition principles of financial
instruments of IAS 39. Most of the Additions were carried
forward unchanged from IAS 39, while changes were made
to the measurement of financial liabilities designated at
fair value through profit or loss using the fair value option
(“FVO”). For these FVO liabilities, the amount of change
in the fair value of a liability that is attributable to changes
in credit risk must be presented in other comprehensive
income (“OCI”). The remainder of the change in fair value
is presented in profit or loss, unless presentation of the fair
value change in respect of the liability’s credit risk in OCI
would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or
loss. However, loan commitments and financial guarantee
contracts which have been designated under the FVO are
scoped out of the Additions.

IAS 39 is aimed to be replaced by IFRS 9 in its entirety.
Before this entire replacement, the guidance in IAS 39
on hedge accounting and impairment of financial assets
continues to apply. The Group expects to adopt IFRS 9
from 1 January 2015.
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IFRS 10 establishes a single control model that applies to
all entities including special purpose entities or structured
entities. It includes a new definition of control which is used
to determine which entities are consolidated. The changes
introduced by IFRS 10 require management of the Group to
exercise significant judgement to determine which entities
are controlled, compared with the requirements in IAS
27 and SIC 12 Consolidation — Special Purpose Entities.
IFRS 10 replaces the portion of IAS 27 Consolidated
and Separate Financial Statements that addresses the
accounting for consolidated financial statements. It also
includes the issues raised in SIC 12.

IFRS 11 replaces IAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures
and SIC 13 Jointly Controlled Entities — Non-Monetary
Contributions by Venturers. It describes the accounting
for joint arrangements with joint control. It addresses only
two forms of joint arrangements, i.e., joint operations and
joint ventures, and removes the option to account for joint
ventures using proportionate consolidation.

IFRS 12 includes the disclosure requirements for
subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates and structured
entities that are previously included in IAS 27 Consolidated
and Separate Financial Statements, |IAS 31 Interests in
Joint Ventures and IAS 28 Investments in Associates. It also
introduces a number of new disclosure requirements for
these entities.

Consequential amendments were made to IAS 27 and IAS
28 as a result of the issuance of IFRS 10, IFRS 11 and IFRS
12. The Group expects to adopt IFRS 10, IFRS 12, and the
consequential amendments to IAS 27 from 1 January 2013.

IFRS 13 provides a precise definition of fair value and a
single source of fair value measurement and disclosure
requirements for use across IFRSs. The standard does not
change the circumstances in which the Group is required
to use fair value, but provides guidance on how fair value
should be applied where its use is already required or
permitted under other IFRSs. The Group expects to adopt
IFRS 13 prospectively from 1 January 2013.
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2.3

24

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to IAS 1 change the grouping of items
presented in OCI. Items that could be reclassified (or
recycled) to profit or loss at a future point in time (for
example, upon derecognition or settlement) would be
presented separately from items which will never be
reclassified. The Group expects to adopt the amendments
from 1 January 2013.

IAS 19 (2011) include a number of amendments that range
from fundamental changes to simple clarifications and
re-wording. The revised standard introduces significant
changes in the accounting for defined benefit pension plans
including removing the choice to defer the recognition
of actuarial gains and losses. Other changes include
modifications to the timing of recognition for termination
benefits, the classification of short-term employee benefits
and disclosures of defined benefit plans. The Group expects
to adopt IAS 19 (2011) from 1 January 2013.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity whose financial and operating
policies the Company controls, directly or indirectly, so as to
obtain benefits from its activities. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the date
on which the Group obtains control, and continue to be
consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s
statement of comprehensive income to the extent of
dividends received and receivable. The Company’s
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less any
impairment loss.

FHER(EBR)ARRA
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, deferred tax assets, financial assets and
investment properties), the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of
the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair
value less costs to sell, and is determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets or
groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment
loss is charged to the statement of comprehensive income
in the period in which it arises in those expense categories
consistent with the function of the impaired assets.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is any indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may
have decreased. If such an indication exists, the recoverable
amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment
loss of an asset is reversed only if there has been a
change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than
the carrying amount that would have been determined (net
of any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of
such an impairment loss is credited to the statement of
comprehensive income in the period in which it arises.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@)

or

the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person, (i) has control
or joint control over the Group; (i) has significant
influence over the Group; or (i) is a member of the
key management personnel of the Group or of a
parent of the Group;

the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

U)

(it

(vi)

(vii)

the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of
the Group (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of
the same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a); and

a person identified in (a)() has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of
a parent of the entity).
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses. When an item of property, plant
and equipment is classified as held for sale or when it is
part of a disposal group classified as held for sale, it is not
depreciated and is accounted for in accordance with IFRS
5, as further explained in the accounting policy for “Non-
current assets and disposal groups held for sale”. The cost
of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises
its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its working condition and location for
its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to the statement of
comprehensive income in the period in which it is incurred.
In situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied,
the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the
carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where
significant parts of property, plant and equipment are
required to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises
such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and
depreciation.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment
to its residual value over its estimated useful life. The
principal estimated useful lives and residual values used for
this purpose are as follows:

fEET AT A A ERE

Estimated Residual

useful lives values

BF Buildings 404 years 10%
R 5 M i 25 Plant and machinery 10 4F years 10%
WNE R EAMRAE Office and other equipment 5% years 10%
B Motor vehicles 5% years 10%

EYANG HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO., LIMITED
Annual Report 2011
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and
the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected from its
use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement
recognised in the statement of comprehensive income in the
period the asset is derecognised is the difference between
the net sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the
relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents plant and equipment
under construction, which is stated at cost less any
impairment losses, and is not depreciated. Cost comprises
the direct costs of construction during the period of
construction. Construction in progress is reclassified to
the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment
when completed and ready for use.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
held to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation,
rather than for use in the production or supply of goods or
services or for administrative purposes; or for sale in the
ordinary course of business. Such properties are measured
at cost, including transaction costs, less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. Depreciation is
calculated on the straight-line basis over the estimated
useful lives of 40 years.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income in the year of the retirement or
disposal.

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-occupied
properties, the deemed cost of a property for subsequent
accounting is its carrying amount at the date of change
in use. If a property occupied by the Group as an owner-
occupied property becomes an investment property, the
Group accounts for such property in accordance with the
policy stated under “Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation” up to the date of change in use.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired
in a business combination is the fair value as at the date
of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets are
assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets
with finite lives are subsequently amortised over the useful
economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there
is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired.
The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an
intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least
at each financial year end.

Research and development costs
All research costs are charged to the statement of
comprehensive income as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products
is capitalised and deferred only when the Group can
demonstrate the technical feasibility of completing the
intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale,
its intention to complete and its ability to use or sell the
asset, how the asset will generate future economic benefits,
the availability of resources to complete the project and
the ability to measure reliably the expenditure during the
development. Product development expenditure which does
not meet these criteria is expensed when incurred.

Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted
for as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor,
assets leased by the Group under operating leases are
included in non-current assets, and rentals receivable
under the operating leases are credited to the statement of
comprehensive income on the straight-line basis over the
lease terms. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable
under the operating leases are charged to the statement of
comprehensive income on the straight-line basis over the
lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are
initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms. When the lease
payments cannot be allocated reliably between the land and
buildings elements, the entire lease payments are included
in the cost of the land and buildings as a finance lease in
property, plant and equipment.
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Financial assets within the scope of IAS 39 are classified
as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and receivables, and available-for-sale financial investments,
or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an
effective hedge, as appropriate. The Group determines
the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.
When financial assets are recognised initially, they are
measured at fair value, plus, in the case of investments
not at fair value through profit or loss, directly attributable
transaction costs.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace. The Group’s financial assets include cash and
bank balances, trade and other receivables, amounts due
from related parties and derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. After initial measurement, such assets
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest rate method less any allowance
for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking
into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and includes fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in finance income in the statement
of comprehensive income. The loss arising from impairment
is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income
in finance costs for loans and in other expenses for
receivables.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
derecognised when:

- the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

- the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from the asset, or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under a “pass-
through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has
retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset.
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control
of the asset, the asset is recognised to the extent of the
Group’s continuing involvement in the asset. In that case,
the Group also recognises an associated liability. The
transferred asset and the associated liability are measured
on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Group could be required to
repay.
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The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset
or a group of financial assets is deemed to be impaired
if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment
as a result of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the asset (an incurred “loss event”)
and that loss event has an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of
financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of
impairment may include indications that a debtor or a group
of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty,
default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the
probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation and observable data indicating that there is
a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows,
such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that
correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group
first assesses individually whether objective evidence of
impairment exists for financial assets that are individually
significant, or collectively for financial assets that are not
individually significant. If the Group determines that no
objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually
assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it
includes the asset in a group of financial assets with
similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses
them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed
for impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or
continues to be, recognised are not included in a collective
assessment of impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has
been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not yet been incurred).
The present value of the estimated future cash flows
is discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed at
initial recognition). If a loan has a variable interest rate, the
discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the
current effective interest rate.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the
use of an allowance account and the amount of the loss
is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.
Interest income continues to be accrued on the reduced
carrying amount and is accrued using the rate of interest
used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of
measuring the impairment loss. Loans and receivables
together with any associated allowance are written off
when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery and all
collateral has been realised or has been transferred to the
Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is increased or
reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a write-off is
later recovered, the recovery is credited to the statement of
comprehensive income.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities within the scope of IAS 39 are classified
as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and borrowings, or as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. The
Group determines the classification of its financial liabilities
at initial recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
and in the case of loans and borrowings, plus directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other
payables, amounts due to related parties and interest-
bearing loans.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Subsequent measurement

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest rate method unless the effect
of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they
are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in the
statement of comprehensive income when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate
amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in finance
costs in the statement of comprehensive income.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of
the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and
the difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the
net amount is reported in the statement of financial position
if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the weighted average basis
and, in the case of work in progress and finished goods,
comprises direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate
portion of overheads. Net realisable value is based on
estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to be
incurred to completion and disposal.

FhEERk(EE)BRAR
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For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and demand deposits which are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk
of changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally
within three months when acquired.

For the purpose of the statement of financial position, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks,
including term deposits, which are not restricted as to use.

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can
be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end
of the reporting period of the future expenditures expected
to be required to settle the obligation. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from the passage
of time is included in finance costs in the statement of
comprehensive income.

Provisions for product warranties granted by the Group on
certain products are recognised based on sales volume
and past experience of the level of repairs and returns,
discounted to their present values as appropriate.

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior
periods are measured at the amount expected to be
recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period,
taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.
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Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

° where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that
is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries
where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that
the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, carryforward of unused tax credits
and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

° where the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, deferred
tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that the temporary differences will reverse
in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are
reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of
the deferred tax asset to be recovered.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of each reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a
legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to
the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When
the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as
income over the periods necessary to match the grant
on a systematic basis to the costs that it is intended to
compensate.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is
credited to a deferred income account and is released to
the statement of comprehensive income over the expected
useful life of the relevant asset by equal annual instalments
or deducted from the carrying amount of the asset and
released to the statement of comprehensive income by way
of a reduced depreciation charge.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when the
revenue can be measured reliably, on the following bases:

(@) from the sale of goods, when the significant risks
and rewards of ownership have been transferred
to the buyer, provided that the Group maintains
neither managerial involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership, nor effective control over
the goods sold;

(b) rental income, on a time proportion basis over the
lease terms; and

(c) interest income, on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through
the expected life of the financial instrument to the net
carrying amount of the financial asset.

n
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The Company operates a share option scheme for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations. Employees (including directors) of the Group
receive remuneration in the form of share-based payment
transactions, whereby employees render services as
consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled
transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is
measured by reference to the fair value at the date at which
they are granted. The fair value is determined by an external
valuer using a binomial model, further details of which are
given in note 29 to the financial statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised,
together with a corresponding increase in equity, over the
period in which the performance and/or service conditions
are fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-
settled transactions at the end of each reporting period until
the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting
period has expired and the Group’s best estimate of the
number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The
charge or credit to the statement of comprehensive income
for a period represents the movement in the cumulative
expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that
period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately
vest, except for equity-settled transactions where vesting is
conditional upon a market or non-vesting condition, which
are treated as vesting irrespective of whether or not the
market or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all
other performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as
a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not
been modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In
addition, an expense is recognised for any modification that
increases the total fair value of the share-based payment
transaction, or is otherwise beneficial to the employee as
measured at the date of modification.

FHEER(EE)BRAR A
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payment transactions (continued)

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as
if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense
not yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately.
This includes any award where non-vesting conditions
within the control of either the Group or the employee
are not met. However, if a new award is substituted for
the cancelled award, and is designated as a replacement
award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled and
new awards are treated as if they were a modification of
the original award, as described in the previous paragraph.
All cancellations of equity-settled transaction awards are
treated equally.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings per
share.

Retirement benefits

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate
in Mainland China are covered by government-regulated
defined contribution retirement benefit schemes under
which the employees are entitled to a monthly pension. The
Group contributes a percentage of the employees’ salaries
to these retirement benefit schemes on a monthly basis.
Under these schemes, the Group has no legal obligation
for retirement benefits beyond the contributions made.
Contributions to these schemes are expensed as incurred.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as
part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such
borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income
earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted
from the borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing
costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an
entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.
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Dividends proposed by the directors are classified as a
separate allocation of retained profits within the equity
section of the statement of financial position, until they
have been approved by the shareholders in a general
meeting. When these dividends have been approved by the
shareholders and declared, they are recognised as a liability.

The financial statements are presented in RMB, which
is the Company’s functional and presentation currency.
Each entity in the Group determines its own functional
currency and items included in the financial statements of
each entity are measured using that functional currency.
Foreign currency transactions recorded by the entities in the
Group are initially recorded using their respective functional
currency rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the functional currency rates
of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period. All
differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are taken to the statement of comprehensive income.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-
monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency
are translated using the exchange rates at the date when
the fair value was determined. The gain or loss arising on
retranslation of a non-monetary item is treated in line with
the recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value
of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair
value gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive
income or profit or loss are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).

On consolidation, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s
foreign operations are translated into the presentation
currency of the Group which is RMB at the exchange
rates ruling at the end of the reporting period and their
consolidated income statements are translated into RMB
at the weighted average exchange rates for the year. The
resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, the cash flows of subsidiaries operating outside
Mainland China are translated into RMB at the exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of subsidiaries operating outside
Mainland China which arise throughout the year are
translated into RMB at the weighted average exchange
rates for the year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period.
However, uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or
liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart
from those involving estimations, which have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements:

Operating lease commitments-Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases
on its investment property portfolio. The Group has
determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and
conditions of the arrangements, that it retains all the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of these
properties which are leased out on operating leases.

Classification between investment properties and owner-
occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property, and has developed criteria in making
that judgement. Investment property is a property held to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Therefore,
the Group considers whether a property generates cash
flows largely independently of the other assets held by the
Group.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Judegments (continued)

Classification between investment properties and owner-
occupied properties (continued)

Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation and another portion that
is held for use in the supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes. If these portions could be sold
separately or leased out separately under a finance lease,
the Group accounts for the portions separately. If the
portions could not be sold separately, the property is an
investment property only if an insignificant portion is held for
use in the supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes. Judgement is made on an individual property
basis to determine whether ancillary services are so
significant that a property does not qualify as an investment
property.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are discussed below.

Useful lives and residual values of property, plant and
equipment

In determining the useful lives and residual values of
items of property, plant and equipment, the Group has to
consider various factors, such as technical or commercial
obsolescence arising from changes or improvements in
production, or from a change in the market demand for
the product or service output of the asset, expected usage
of the asset, expected physical wear and tear, the care
and maintenance of the asset, and legal or similar limits
on the use of the asset. The estimation of the useful life
of the asset is based on the experience of the Group with
similar assets that are used in a similar way. Additional
depreciation is made if the estimated useful lives and/or the
residual values of items of property, plant and equipment
are different from the previous estimation. Useful lives and
residual values are reviewed at the end of the reporting
period based on changes in circumstances.
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Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences and unused tax losses to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the losses can be utilised. Significant management
judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred
tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely
timing and level of future taxable profits together with future
tax planning strategies.

Impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment
The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there
is an indication that property, plant and equipment may be
impaired. If any such indication exists, the Group makes
an estimate of the recoverable amount of property, plant
and equipment. This requires an estimation of the value
in use of property, plant and equipment. Estimating the
value in use requires the Group to make an estimate of
the expected future cash flows from property, plant and
equipment and also to choose a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.
The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment as at
31 December 2011 was RMB350,884,000 (31 December
2010: RMB318,553,000). Further details are given in note
14 to the financial statements.

Write-down of inventories to net realisable value

Write-down of inventories to net realisable value is made
based on the estimated net realisable value of inventories.
The assessment of the required write-down amount involves
management’s judgement and estimates. Where the actual
outcome or expectation in future is different from the original
estimate, such difference will have an impact on the carrying
amounts of inventories and the write-down charge/write-
back amount in the period in which such estimate has been
changed.

Impairment of trade receivables, other receivables and
amounts due from related parties

The Group estimates the provisions for impairment of trade
receivables, other receivables and amounts due from related
parties by assessing their recoverability based on credit
history and prevailing market conditions. This requires the
use of estimates and judgements. Provisions are applied to
trade receivables, other receivables and amounts due from
related parties where events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the balances may not be collectible. Where
the expectation is different from the original estimate,
such difference will affect the carrying amounts of trade
receivables, other receivables and amounts due from related
parties and thus the impairment loss in the period in which
such estimate is changed. The Group reassesses the
provisions at the end of the reporting period.
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The Group’s operating businesses are structured and
managed separately, according to the nature of their
operations and the products they provide. Each of the
Group’s business segments represents a strategic business
unit that offers products which are subject to risks and
returns that are different from those of the other business
segments.

Summary details of the business segments are as follows:

(i) the multi-layer ceramic chips (“MLCC”) segment
engages in the manufacture and sale of MLCC and
the trading of MLCGC;

(i) the mobile phone trading segment engages in the
trading of mobile phones.

In determining the Group’s geographical segments,
revenues are attributed to the segments based on the
location of the customers, and assets are attributed to
the segments based on the location of the assets. No
assets and capital expenditure information is presented for
the Group’s geographical segments, as over 90% of the
Group’s assets are located in Mainland China.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with
reference to the selling prices used for sales made to third
parties at the then prevailing market prices.

The following tables present revenue, profit and certain
asset, liability and expenditure information for the Group’s
business segments for the year ended 31 December 2011.
The MLCC segment is the only major continuing reportable
operating segment of the Group in year 2010, which
engages in the manufacture and sale of MLCC. Accordingly,
no further operating segment information is provided for the
years ended 31 December 2010.
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4. REFIER &) 4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Year ended 31 December 2011 BBFHRES
HE-Z——S+-A=+—-HLEE Trading of
mobile st
MLCC phones Total
AR¥Tn AR®Tn AR%TxR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ok Segment revenue:
HETINARP Sales to external customers 357,274 124,128 481,402
H A Other revenue 1,055 - 1,055
358,329 124,128 482,457
D EELE Segment results 18,945 5,567 24,512
FE Reconciliation:
| S Interest income 1,179
AR AR Finance costs (8,924)
B A A A Profit before tax 16,767
IHEE Segment assets 799,766 33,697 833,463
R Recongiliation:
25 B [ e U AR S0 ) 8 Elimination of intersegment
receivables -
BEHRE Total assets 833,463
SHEE Segment liabilities 360,869 29,615 390,484
A Reconciliation:
7 BB 1 AR ST Elimination of intersegment
payables (1,416)
BREE Total liabilities 389,068
Hih &R Other segment information:
REERERERLFE Impairment losses of inventory
REEE recognised in the statement
of comprehensive income 1,731 - 1,731
REARERERLZ Reversal of impairment of trade
FEWE 5 BR TR (B R B receivables recognised in the
statement of comprehensive
income (801) - (801)
I RS Depreciation and amortisation 29,027 - 29,027
BEARAX Capital expenditure 61,837 - 61,837

EYANG HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO., LIMITED
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4, BEARER (&) 4, SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
b 35 73 &P Geographical segments
@  KEIFBESZKA (a)  Revenue from external customers
—F——F —
2011 2010
ARETT ARKETTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
A B A B Mainland China 216,258 219,247
FR B A e DA SINEL i B 2R Countries other than Mainland China 265,144 177,051
481,402 396,298
EBEEEEFNER Information about major customers
I A #) N R # 124,128,000 (2010 4F : £%) Revenue of approximately RMB124,128,000 (2010: Nil) was
TIREMEBREFPHBBFHIEE D - 14 derived from sales by the mobile phone trading segment
REEE BB F I EBEE to two customers, represent the total mobile phone trading

sales of the Group.

FhEER(EE)GRRAA
—T——FFR



Bt 7% 3R R M R
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R—ZF——%F+—F=+—H 31 December 2011

5. WA Hittlk AR Wz 5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAIN
WA(INEBARER 2 €5 )IEEEER% Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents
EZE(HNBRHEERE SN ZIEKSE) - the net invoiced value of goods sold, after allowances for

returns and trade discounts.

WA~ g A RIWESE DT - An analysis of revenue, other income and gains is as follows:
—E——F —T—EF
2011 2010
B s AR®T T ARBTIT
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
A Revenue
MLCC tHE& Sale of MLCC 357,274 396,298
BEFIKE S Trading of mobile phones 124,128 =
481,402 396,298
Hbg A Other income
RITHBUA Bank interest income 7 1,179 279
AL UWA Rental income 7 5,745 4,947
BT B Government grants 458 270
FETE U A B 5 Amortisation of deferred income 26 1,055 806
SHE R Sale of materials 2,271 993
Efth Others 647 110
11,355 7,405
Wz Gains
N EW TR Fair value gains, net:
PTEemIT A Derivative instruments —
— T REE1ER transactions not qualifying
HH2RH as hedges 161 =
11,516 7,405
6. B E R AS 6. FINANCE COSTS
BEKADHTAT An analysis of finance costs is as follows:
—E——F —ZT—2F
2011 2010
AR®T T ARBTIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
IRITERF S Interest on bank loans 8,924 4,401
Hgh B ¢ Other finance costs:
RITEERX Expense for bank facilities - 2,700
8,924 7,101

EYANG HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO., LIMITED
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7. BRBATRDE 7.  PROFIT BEFORE TAX
REBE 2 BREAFEEI0R(GEA) The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/
(crediting):
—E——F —E-FF
2011 2010
BaE ARETT ARKETTT
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BEFEKA Cost of inventories sold 417,333 308,350
e Depreciation 28,207 25,873
T E L b TR SR 8 Amortisation of land
lease prepayments 488 488
H A\ B Amortisation of other
intangible assets 172 172
7 KRB Research and development costs:

REERZ Current year expenditure 7,158 9,363
BFEEHEORE Minimum lease payments under

HEFIE operating leases in respect

of buildings 259 268
1% ERRD B & Auditors’ remuneration 1,140 980
EERAMAZ (B Employee benefit expense (including
EEME (FIzES)) ¢ directors’ remuneration (note 8)):
TERES Wages and salaries 52,474 42 532
BRI R Retirement benefit contributions 1,585 1,447
% e 45 & B A A Equity-settled share
53 option expense 50 727
fEHE=R(FRE) Foreign exchange difference, net (423) 4,269
1S F s 2 0] 215 Write-down of inventories to

HE net realisable value* 2,963 2,454
FEWE B ERFORE Impairment/(reversal of impairment)

/CRERE) * of trade receivables* (801) 134
IR RT 47 B Government grants** (458) (270)
B MEE AR Rental income on investment

HEELERY properties less direct operating

AR # 387,000 7T expense of RMB387,000

(20104 : ARM (2010: RMB368,000) 5 (5,745) (4,947)

368,000 7T.)

RITHALEHA Bank interest income 5 (1,179) (279)
B EREEA #RFERERE S RTR * The write-down of inventories to net realisable value and

impairment/(reversal of impairment) of trade receivables are included
in “Other expenses” on the face of the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

** The government grants represent the subsidies received from the
Shenzhen Financial Bureau as a reward of the excess amount of
export sales of a high technology enterprise in the current year over
that in the previous year and the reward as the top ten tax payer in
the year 2010.
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8. EEME 8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

EEMEFFBOT ¢ Details of directors’ remuneration are as follows:
= —TFF
2011 2010
ARETR ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
e Fees 235 244

E < Other emoluments:

e ROERL Salaries and allowances 1,364 884
RIRRE TR Retirement benefit contributions 48 45
& e 45 B R A T S Equity-settled share option expense 17 237
1,429 1,166
1,664 1,410

FR - ETEFRAREAAEERS ME
REARRZBEREFERTERE &
B — P B BN MR E29 - %
FREEZAFEEDRETHRREZE
Wk AR ERRH B HEE - Mt A
AEERHHRRRCEHEBRELXES
e WERERA -

FA - AR EWES A FB T AR RUEMR
EEERMARKRE 2 S - HIERBER
BE - FATERESERRARERRDT
a2 2k -

(a) BUFHTES
FRARBULIFATEERN Z2HEE

During the vyear, certain directors were granted share
options, in respect of their services to the Group, under
the share option scheme of the Company, further details of
which are set out in note 29 to the financial statements. The
fair value of such options which has been recognised in the
statement of comprehensive income over the vesting period
was determined as at the date of grant, and the amount
included in the financial statements for the current year is
included in the above directors’ remuneration disclosures.

During the year, no remuneration was paid by the Group to
any of the directors of the Company as an inducement to
join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss
of office. There was no arrangement under which a director
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the

year.

(a) Independent non-executive directors

The fees paid to independent non-executive

AR : directors during the year were as follows:
—E——F —E-FF
2011 2010
AR®T T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
RUpam fo Mr. Liu Huanbin 68 70
TRETAE Mr. Pan Wei 68 70
KREERITE Mr. Peleus Chu 98 104
234 244
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8. BEEME(E) 8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)
(@ BIAFHITESE) (a) Independent non-executive directors (continued)
FRTERBIIFRITEEINE There were no other emoluments payable to
& (2010 4F : 47) - independent non-executive directors during the year
(2010: Nil.
(b) HBITRIHTES (b)  Executive and non-executive directors

BHEA RiEcE

HER2H % BRERX

Salaries  Retirement Equity-settied ame
e and benefit  share option Total
Fees  allowances contributions expense remuneration

ARBTR  ARBTR  ARETR ARBTR  ARETR
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

22011512831 HLEEE Year ended 31 December 2011

HES: Executive directors:
BEREE Mr. Chen Weirong - 405 16 4 425
BlgE Mr. Liao Jie - 545 16 4 565
REELE Mr. Xun Chuncheng - 415 16 6 437
- 1,365 48 14 1,427
FHTES Non-executive directors:
BRERE Mr. Cheng Wusheng - - - - -
i Mr. Zhang Zhilin - - - - -
BERE Mr. Chen Hao - - - - -
BiExt Ms. Shuang Mei - - - 4 4
- - - 4 4
FigmR(EE) AR AT
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8. EEME(E) 8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)
(b) BITRFEBITESE) (b)  Executive and non-executive directors
(continued)

RixEH Rigks

FeREy 5 RRERX
Salaries Retirement  Equity-settled aie
ik and benefit  share option Total
Fees allowances  contributions expense  remuneration

ARETR  ARBTR  ARBTL  ARETR  ARMTR
RMBO0O  RMBOOD  RMB'OO0  RMB'000  RMB'000

BZ2010512B 31 HILEE Year ended 31 December 2010

H17ES: Executive directors:
RERLE Mr. Chen Weirong - 404 15 56 475
BlREE Mr. Liao Jie - 313 15 51 379
RERE Mr. Xun Chuncheng - 167 15 79 261
= 884 45 186 1,115
FHTES Non-executive directors:
BREEE Mr. Cheng Wusheng = - - - _
FHMLE Mr. Zhang Zhilin = - - - _
ooy e Mr. Chen Hao - - _ - _
Bigat Ms. Shuang Mel - - - 51 51
- - - 51 51

EYANG HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO., LIMITED
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RZZE——F+=H=+—H8 31 December 2011

o. 5EREFEES 9.
FN 5 EZETLEEBEIEIR(20104:
3R)EE - HFMFBHN L XXHizES - F
N Ep27(2010F 2R)IFEE ~ &
FeoEEZHMFBOT ¢

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included
three (2010: three) directors, details of whose remuneration
are set out in note 8 above. Details of the remuneration of
the remaining two (2010: two) non-director, highest paid
employees for the year are as follows:

—E——F —T—EF

2011 2010

ARETT ARET T

RMB’000 RMB’000

e KERL Salaries and allowances 847 812
RIRREF R Retirement benefit contributions 17 16
& e 45 B R IR T S Equity-settled share option expense 1 43
865 871

FHEATHE ZFFES

o
i I]}
e
K>
)
il

The number of non-director, highest paid employees whose

HEWT : remuneration fell within the following band is as follows:
—F——F —FTFF
2011 2010
=& AR%1,000,0007T  Nil to RMB1,000,000 2 2

FRANRFEEESFTERERE/AE
EARGMERBRE BHE-—FHRED
R BEIMKRIME29 - ZEBBRAEZ AT
BEEERRTHER2E K ERAER)
EREHAHETE - Mt ARFEFBR
RZeBEBRBELNFEERSF R
EMe 2 WEERA -

During the year, share options were granted to one non-
director, highest paid employee in respect of his service
to the Group, further details of which are included in the
disclosures in note 29 to the financial statements. The
fair value of such options, which has been recognised in
the statement of comprehensive income over the vesting
period, was determined as at the date of grant and the
amount included in the financial statements for the current
year is included in the above non-director, highest paid
employees’ remuneration disclosures.

FEER(EE)GR QA
—T——FFR
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10.

188t
SR B AR A S R B 2 R A E R AR
7 RAEE B 2 R B 8 5 A
5%t -

HARAEBEFARER LA E L LR
JERBLAE - UL AKBEY EABENE
LB

AR B A A B K B 2 Bt 8 2 BRI
FEHEERZEEARARRINFEDER
20084F 12 H16 HER m#H EHE % RE -
B 2008 FFE £ 2010 F HIM BB 2 2
BT SRR K A 15% » 2011410 A
31 8 - FINFEE R RE &= Bt
% NBE2011FEE2013F R 15%HE R
FIS TR R BT IS R ©

BR EXFTtURYIF BRI Z A 15% BEH X
S RRB) 2 B R RN FENELR25% 13
EREBANEEMREN -

10.

INCOME TAX

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on
profits arising in or derived from the jurisdictions in which
members of the Group are domiciled and operate.

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as
the Group had no assessable profits derived from or earned
in Hong Kong during the year.

Shenzhen Eyang Technology Development Co., Ltd. (“SZ
Eyang”) (RIITTFEEHZEZERER A A]), a subsidiary of the
Company in Mainland China, obtained its high technology
enterprise accreditation on 16 December 2008 and hence
was subject to a national income tax rate of 15% from 2008
to 2010. On 31 October 2011, SZ Eyang was recognized
as high technology enterprise again and was subject to a
national income tax rate of 15% from 2011 to 2013.

Except for SZ Eyang mentioned above that was entitled
to a preferential tax rate of 15%, the subsidiaries of the
Company were required to pay corporate income tax (“CIT”)
at the standard rate of 25% during the year.

—E——F —E—TF
2011 2010
AR¥T T AREFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
REE : Group:

BV Ef—+h B K e Current — Mainland China
FREBMBEZH Charge for the year 2,842 7,510
IRAE Deferred 178 1,241
BEFEBERE Overprovision in prior years (809) =
FRT S B Total tax charge for the year 2,211 8,751

EYANG HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO., LIMITED
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10.

11.

FRig%i(4&) 10.
BARFIREMBERRMERRZEER

KA BB BERNIAR X HIEE

B ERGE 2 HIARHEER - URERN
REDEERE)EHERB R 2 HRWT -

INCOME TAX (continued)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit
before tax at the statutory rates for the countries in which
the Company and its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax
expense at the effective tax rate, and a reconciliation of the
applicable rates (i.e., the statutory tax rates) to the effective
tax rates, are as follows:

REE—2011 F Group - 2011
—E-—F —T-%F
2011 2010
AR¥TR BAt ARETL Bkt
RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
BRATRTAE Profit before tax 16,767 42,706
REEHEAE 2 HA Tax at the statutory tax rate 4,192 25 10,676 25
PTEEHETE : Tax effect of:
BEMEIEER Lower tax rates for
RERE specific districts or countries (9,240) (55) (478) )
BIB BN Tax incentives (1,238) 7 (2,627) (6)
AAHIBBA Income not subject to tax (143) 1) (121) =
AAHBREX Expenses not deductible for tax (243) 1) 1,684 4
RERZHIEBE Tax losses not recognised 9,282 55 951 2
BBIMDIR 50% % K Additional deduction of 50%
FE A of the research and
development expense (524) (3) (3,045) ()
BEFERERE Overprovision in prior years (809) (5) - -
HASE RBIAKE Effect of withholding tax on the
P8 2 &1 7] 99 R distributable profits of the
ZEHR 2 Group’s Mainland China
subsidiaries 538 3 1,654 8
Hit Others 396 2 57 -
RAEEERREFE 2 Taxcharge at the Group’s
HEFRAT effective tax rate 2,211 13 8,751 20
B AREA AELFE 11. PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE

H EZ2011FE12A3MBEFEZH A
AEBEABRGHRAFNBREREZAR
# 36,651,000 (20104 : E5 1B A R #&
2,881,0007T) * ZAIBEERAR A %R
= (FIFE30()) °

PARENT

The consolidated profit attributable to owners of the parent
for the year ended 31 December 2011 includes a gain of
RMB36,651,000 (2010: loss of RMB2,881,000) which has
been dealt with in the financial statements of the Company
(note 30(b)).

FhEER(EE)GRRAA
—T——FFR
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12. KR 12. DIVIDENDS
—E——F —T-TF
2011 2010
ARETR ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
¥R R HY — 4 Proposed final — Nil

(20104 : 3.051) (2010: HK3.0 cents)

=il per share - 10,239

13. BRAREBRBREFEAEMLESRE 13. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO

F ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

EREXRZFNESBHIRG AR T ERK The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount
BEBAERBGEENBRFEFAND ET is based on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary
405,500,000% & 3@ A% (20104 : 405,500,000 equity holders of the parent, and the weighted average
i)z T HEETE - number of ordinary shares of 405,500,000 (2010:

405,500,000) in issue during the year.

HREARITEZBREZZEHAZES 2 No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings per
EREARBTEEE REBRE - QI share amounts presented for the years ended 31 December
P EE 2011 £ K% 2010412 A 31 HIEEF 2011 and 2010 in respect of a dilution as the impact of the
E 23z GRERRNEEIED E(#E share options outstanding had an anti-dilutive effect on the
T o basic earnings per share amounts presented.
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14.

F+= A =+—H 31 December 2011
Y - BERSZE 14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
KE Group
HERR
BER  HitRE
#2*  Office and RE  EEIR
#F  Plantand other Motor Construction @t
Buildings  machinery  equipment vehicles in progress Total
ARBTR AR¥TR AR®TR AR¥TT AR®TR AR%T:R
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
20115128310 31 December 2011
R2010F12A31 AR At 31 December 2010 and
2011E1A18 at 1 January 2011:
XA Cost 56,428 299,356 14,016 1,765 14,996 386,561
2HNERAE Accumulated depreciation
and impairment (8205) (104746  (8579)  (1,177) - (22700
REFE Net carrying amount 48,223 194,610 5,437 588 14,996 263,854
R2011E1 A1R At 1 January 2011, net of
MREFNER accumulated depreciation
RE and impairment 48,223 194,610 5,437 588 14,996 263,854
NE Additions - 43,338 988 695 16,816 61,837
HE Disposals - (5,368) - - (643) (6,011)
kL2 Transfers - 6,964 - - (6,964) -
ERERENE Transfer to investment
(PzE15) properties (note 15) (801) - - - - (801)
BREMEER (T 15) Transfer from investment
properties (note 15) 3,511 - - - - 3,511
EREE Provided during the year (1,261)  (25,481) (1,234) (231) - (28,207)
20115128318 At 31 December 2011, net of
MREFNER accumulated depreciation
R and impairment 49,672 214,063 5,191 1,052 24,205 294,183
R2011F12 8318 : At 31 December 2011
P Cost 50,138 344,200 15,004 2,460 24205 445,007
ZAMERAE Accumulated depreciation
and impairment (9,466) (130,227) (9,813) (1,408) - (150,914)
A8 Net carrying amount 49,672 214,063 5,191 1,052 24,205 294,183
FhEERk(EE)BRAR

—T——FFR



Bt 75 R R Y A

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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14. ¥ BERRE(E)

AEM(E)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

Group (continued)

HERR
BER  EfR
#zE  Officeand "E ERIE
#F  Plntand other Motor  Construction Bt
Buildings ~ machinery  equipment vehicles  in progress Total
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
20105127 31H 31 December 2010
2009512 A31 B R At 31 December 2009 and
2010F1 A1 : at 1 January 2010:
R Cost 68,851 251,506 14,133 1,479 8245 344214
RAMERAE Accumulated depreciation
and impairment (6,886)  (81,640) (0,378) (1,069) - (98,967)
REFE Net carrying amount 61,965 169,866 4,755 416 8,245 245,247
R2010F1 /18 At 1 January 2010, net of
MR EFMERAE accumulated depreciation
and impairment 61,965 169,866 4,755 416 8,245 245,247
E Additions 1,465 47,011 1,962 286 7,644 58,368
3 Transfers - 893 - - (893) -
ERERENE Transfer to investment
(BizE15) properties (note 15) (13,888) = = = - (13,888)
FREE Provided during the year (1,319) (23,160) (1,280) (114) = (25,879)
®2010F 127318 At 31 December 2010, net of
MR EFMERRE accumulated depreciation
and impairment 48,223 194,610 5,437 588 14,996 263,854
R2010E12 8318 : At 31 December 2010:
XA Cost 56,428 299,356 14,016 1,765 14,996 386,561
ZAMERAE Accumulated depreciation
and impairment (8,205)  (104,746) (8,579) (1,177) - (122,707)
EAFE Net carrying amount 48,223 194,610 5,437 588 14,996 263,854
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RZZE——F+=H=+—H 31 December 2011

14.

15.

ME - BMERREREE) 14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)
RNEE ZEF R BIARE AR BB NREE The Group’s buildings are held under medium term leases in
Mainland China.
REFEFYE  MERBEEUNERRNE Details of the Group’s property, plant and equipment
B2 IRITERZFBHRME27(0) pledged to secure the Group’s bank loans are set out in
note 27(b).
HE 28 R B M A A R B A B AL R R ST Certificates of ownership in respect of certain buildings of
R2011F12 A3 BEEREFENAARK the Group located in Dongguan with a net carrying amount
4,668,000 75(20104F : A K # 4,783,000 of approximately RMB4,668,000 as at 31 December 2011
TZETEFZABERES - (2010: RMB4,783,000) have not yet been issued by the
relevant PRC authorities.
REWE 15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
—EF——F —FTFF
2011 2010
B aE AR®T T ARETTT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
M1 A1BZA - Cost at 1 January, net of

MR 254 E accumulated depreciation 29,671 16,383
B - KEKEE Transfer from property,

g plant and equipment 801 13,888
HERE R A Transfer to owner-occupied property 14 (3,511) =
FRFTERE Depreciation provided during the year 14 (684) (600)
M®12 4318 At 31 December 26,277 29,671
W12 A318 : At 31 December:

%N Cost 27,714 30,714

REHE Accumulated depreciation (1,437) (1,043)

AR 58 Net carrying amount 26,277 29,671

AEBEZREMERBPHBEOBHEALN
AR BRFE o

MR2011F12A318 ' AEBREMEZ R
F{E#) A AR 68,420,000 7T  JiRIETH
VEELERGHEMUAEERIREA
RAFHRIREE A R ARMS 2 FEMGE -

The Group’s investment properties are held under medium
term leases and are situated in Mainland China.

At 31 December 2011, the fair value of the Group’s
investment properties was approximately RMB68,420,000,
which was based on the valuation performed by Ascent
Partners Transaction Services Limited, independent
professionally qualified valuers, on an open market, existing
use basis.

FEER(EE)GRAA
—T——FFR
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16. T iHEEFE[TFIE 16. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS

—E——F —E—FF

2011 2010

ARET T AREFT

RMB’000 RMB’000

M1 A1BZEmE Carrying amount at 1 January 21,805 22,293

FNE R Amortisation provided during the year (488) (488)

®12 A31 B ZBRmEE Carrying amount at 31 December 21,317 21,805
BEEENR  ZEk Current portion included in prepayments,

H e llrIE 2 BEAES S deposits and other receivables (488) (488)
FEBNERER Non-current portion 20,829 21,317
REEZHE TR ER BEAFEL The Group's leasehold land is held under medium term
L PAHR B KB © leases and is situated in Mainland China.
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N—=

17.

18.

HhBEEE 17. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS
E
Computer software
—E——F —ET—TF
2011 2010
AR¥T T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
A1 A1 B2 Cost at 1 January, net of
(B 25T E) accumulated amortisation 1,369 1,541
FEH R Amortisation provided during the year (172) (172)
®12 A31H At 31 December 1,197 1,369
M®12H31H : At 31 December:
BN Cost 1,713 1,713
e i Accumulated amortisation (516) (344)
AR F 58 Net carrying amount 1,197 1,369
R B AT 2= 18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
biN/NE] Company
—F——% 25
2011 2010
AR¥T T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
JEETRRD - IRAKAE Unlisted shares, at cost 365,000 365,000

JEWR R EMNHE QR RBRERR T
IRBEERBRDEEINAARK
96,869,0007t (20104 : AR % 70,005,000
TR AR 23,275,000 7T (20104 : AR
#519,793,0007T) * JHEEIF - RERRNE
KEFEERE - WERKREMNE AR RIE
ZEEAEREATERE -

The amounts due from and due to subsidiaries included
in the Company’s current assets and current liabilities
of RMB96,869,000 (2010: RMB70,005,000) and
RMB23,275,000 (2010: RMB19,793,000), respectively, are
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. The
carrying amounts of these amounts due from and due to
subsidiaries approximate to their fair values.

FEER(EE)GRAA
—T——FFR
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18. HRKMBARZER(E) 18. INTERESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
KNT](E) Company (continued)
MBARZF1BEFMT : Particulars of the subsidiaries are as follows:
BETR
HMERL/ R BRBRE/
EXBERAS A BRAEE RAREMR
Place and date Nominal value RARA
of incorporation/ of issued and Percentage of equity
INGIER registrationand  paid-up share/ attributable to the FTEEK
Company name operations registered capital Company Principal activities
B i3
Direct Indirect
% %
Eyang Management Co., Ltd. RBRAHS 10,000% 7T REER
(“Eyang Management’) 20068 A 10H US$10,000 100 - Investment holding
BV
10 August 2006
EATHER(RE)ERAA B 10,0007 REER
Hong Kong Eyang Holdings 20068 A13H HK$10,000 - 100 Investment holding
(Group) Co., Ltd. Hong Kong
13 August 2006
EAFGRBARAT &b/ mEAR 500,000 57 EEMLCC
Hong Kong Eyang Technology Co., Ltd. 2001104128 HK$500,000 - 100 Trading of MLCC
Hong Kong/Mainland China
12 October 2001
AFE
SZ Eyang* /R AR AR 250,685,650 T BERFEMLCC
2001%F2H22H  RMB250,685,650 - 100 Manufacture and
PRC/Mainland China sale of MLCC
22 February 2001
RENTERHEERERAA ([RETH ) mE/REAE AR%20,000,0007 EFHEREEMLCC
Dongguan Eyang Technology Development 2001434 22H RMB20,000,000 - 100 Lease of buildings and
Co., Ltd. ("DG Eyang’) PRC/Mainland China trading of MLCC
22 March 2001
e THETRRARAR" hE/EARE ARM50000007 BHERHEMLCC
Anhui Jineyang Electronic 200848 A 25H RMB5,000,000 - 100 Manufacture and
Technology Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China sale of MLCC
25 August 2008
NER Management Ltd. RBRAHS E REER
2011468 A4H US$1 100 Investment holding
BV
4 August 2011
EARRIRARAR" &/ PEAKE 10,0007 BBFRES
Hong Kong Wei Chang NER 201148 A 18H HK$10,000 - 100 Trading of mobile phones
Co., Limited Hong Kong/Mainland China
18 August 2011
ZERBHIREFBAEEMAAERA o Companies incorporated as limited liability companies under the
a e PRC law.
e AT B 2011 4 8 AREFRIAE S © 3 The company commenced business since August 2011.
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19.

IEER I8 19. DEFERRED TAX
RERZREREEERBEEHHUOT ¢ The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during
the year are as follows:
IRIEFIBEE Deferred tax assets
BHBERGT
ZHEZEM Bl 0% BE
BB ESEN RRfHEER
Amortisation ~ H#FE REMEK HE
of computer B B Impairment
softwarein  Provision Impairment of items of
excess of against  oftrade  property, [E:tER
tax allowed slow-moving  and other  plant and Accrued H
depreciation inventories receivables equipment  expense Total
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
R2009F12A31 B R At 31 December 2009 and
201061 A1H 1 January 2010 17 643 1,228 42 - 1,930
FRRZAkGER Credited/(charged) to the
N/ (308) statement of comprehensive
income during the year ©) 368 53 - - 412
R2010F12 A31 B R At 31 December 2010 and
2011F1A1H 1 January 2011 8 1,011 1,281 42 — 2,342
FARZEkEER Credited/(charged) to the
N/ (B) statement of comprehensive
income during the year (4) 260 (120) 39 263 360
R2011F12A 31 H At 31 December 2011 4 1,271 1,161 3 263 2,702

AREER2011F 12 A31 HREEELHA
EE #3,059,000 7T(20105E12 A31H = A
R¥2,176,00070) ' s RIBEE R RESE
EEZFRAELF - UHIEEZESZH
BHEBZ AR BB ZERTAE - AR
EEEREHEBE—BEHZHB AR
EXx BRERSBHRAOERE - BHARS
FlEmB R EE RS EREANE - LB
PREERIERE B AR ZSEEER
EEFRIBEE o

The Group had tax losses of approximately RMB3,059,000
as at 31 December 2011 (31 December 2010:
RMB2,176,000) that can be carried forward for five years
from the year in which the losses arose for offsetting against
future taxable profits of the companies in which the losses
arose. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in
respect of these losses as they have arisen in subsidiaries
that have been loss-making for some time and there is
insufficient convincing evidence that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow the utilisation of the carryforward of
tax losses before they expire in five years.

FhEERk(EE)BRAR
—T——FFR
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19. EEHIE(E)
EEBEAR

19.

DEFERRED TAX (continued)
Deferred tax liabilities

M
Withholding
taxes
ARKETTT
RMB’000
R 2009F 12 A31 H X At 31 December 2009
20101 A1 H and 1 January 2010 3,413
FRAREERERP Charged to the statement of comprehensive
B income during the year 1,654
R2010F 12 A31 B X At 31 December 2010
20111 A1H and 1 January 2011 5,067
FAREEEEXF Charged to the statement of comprehensive
Ik income during the year 538
M2011F12 531 H At 31 December 2011 5,605

BIEFBEERBHE - INEIREERER
FEBARER S MINEIRE S EERS ZIRE
BIEER 10% B R RHUTE © AR ER
200841 A1 BRRAER » BAR 2007 F12
A 31 Big 2 &F| o fm B AR EZEINE
WEEFE R EEBFERKELHE - A&
BAEEENFHE - AEBEBBHEAE5% °
Eit - ANEE R BIRRER S 2 B A )
TR 2008F 1 A1 BB 2 &BF| 9K S
B S ZE BN TEFOR o

R2011F 12 A31 B » YRBETFTAEEH
B A RIRELZ K T R &I 85 KR
EFIBAEAR THER(2010F : ) ©

EYANG HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO., LIMITED
Annual Report 2011

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a
10% withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to
foreign investors from the foreign investment enterprises
established in Mainland China. The requirement is effective
from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31
December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be
applied if there is a tax treaty between Mainland China
and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For the Group,
the applicable rate is 5%. The Group is therefore liable
to withholding taxes on dividends distributed by those
subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect of
earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

At 31 December 2011, there was no significant
unrecognised deferred tax liability (2010: Nil) for taxes that
would be payable on the unremitted earnings of certain of
the Group’s subsidiaries.
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RZZE——F+=H=+—H 31 December 2011

20. ‘FE 20. INVENTORIES

REE

Group
—E——F —ET—ZF
2011 2010
ARETR ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
A Raw materials 19,340 22,921
TR Work in progress 20,236 32,716
UK Finished goods 71,966 55,532
111,542 111,169
I ERHE Provision against slow-moving inventories (8,480) (6,748)
103,062 104,421

21. EWESFRAREWERE 21. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

REH

Group
—ET——F —E—TF
2011 2010
ARETRT ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
RN E SR N EWZETE  Trade and bills receivables 164,413 161,633
RIE Impairment (7,733) (8,534)
156,680 153,099

AEEBEMLCCER ZE 5T A UK
RBE - BTMICCEFZEER—KRR/2E
5fEA - ®XFRAXRSEER - AKEY
REERYGRABRES - YRAEEEE
HEFIAGEEERBRERE - BRE
e E MBI BaRARENR - BKE SR
RRRE -

PrA R IE S B ¥R & MR R 60 E 180
HAZIE -
RBEMR RBERBY/EEZREKE

SERT EEAN - LRERTEY 25
W :

The Group’s trading terms with its MLCC customers are
mainly on credit. The credit periods for MLCC customers
generally are two to five months. Each customer has a
maximum credit limit. The Group seeks to maintain strict
control over its outstanding receivables and has a credit
control department to minimise its credit risk. Overdue
balances are reviewed regularly by management. Trade
receivables are non-interest-bearing.

The bills receivable were all due within 60 to 180 days from
the end of the reporting period.

An aged analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of
the reporting period, based on the invoice date, and the
amount of bills receivable are as follows:

FEER(EE)GRAA
—T——FFR
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21. FEWEBEZRIFINEKERE(Z) 21. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)
—B——F —E-TF
2011 2010
AR®T T ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
90HA Within 90 days 117,730 90,106
91 %180 H 91 to 180 days 11,145 21,218
181 £ 360 H 181 to 360 days 693 634
1224 110 2 years 573 5,454
HBiE3F Over 3 years 7,160 3,080
137,301 120,492
=R Bills receivable 27,112 41,141
164,413 161,633

FEWE S BRSO E R B E BT

The movements in the provision for impairment of trade
receivables are as follows:

—E——F —E-FF

2011 2010

ARET T ARETTT

RMB’000 RMB’000

m1A18 At 1 January 8,534 8,400
BRI EE R Impairment losses recognised 410 134
R ERE Reversal of impairment (1,211) -
m12 A31H At 31 December 7,733 8,534

STAN EEKE SRFORERERERNE
BRI E 5 R AR 7,733,0007T
(20104 : AR¥8,534,0007T) @ HEE®E
EA AR 7,733,000 T(20104F « AR
8,534,0007t) ° fEBIE BEEWE 5 BRK
HERMERE 2 RFEEH - WEARA
NS N e S e SR R IR
AR E MR EEREE

EYANG HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO., LIMITED
Annual Report 2011

Included in the above provision for impairment of trade
receivables is a provision for individually impaired trade
receivables of RMB7,733,000 (2010: RMB8,534,000) with a
carrying amount of RMB7,733,000 (2010: RMB8,534,000).
The individually impaired trade receivables relate to
customers that were in financial difficulties and are not
expected to be recovered. The Group does not hold any
collateral or other credit enhancements over these balances.
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21.

FEREZEREFRERERE (&) 21. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)

W IEER SRR ARE Y BN E FERX An aged analysis of the trade receivables that are neither
ZHRERDTEAT individually nor collectively considered to be impaired is as
follows:

REE

Group
—E2——F —E-TF
2011 2010
ARETT AREFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
1] A 480 2R 7V BRI E Neither past due nor impaired 111,033 98,451
A H >R 90 A Less than 90 days past due 18,351 12,727
#HI91 =180 H 91 to 180 days past due 184 190
#H1181 =360 H 181 to 360 days past due - 590
129,568 111,958

1) 7R 280 5 7 458 1 300 (B 2 8 W B 55 Bl Sk £
BETREFPER RERNIHLEED
TRRCE

EEHEENRREZEKRESRKER
F2BIUEFPER  FERAKE MR
BRRAT - RIBEAEER  ARRIEFERR
HEEEZU\SANE - BUSEHKD
BAR ZHUE - FH it B AR I F AR
HIRERAE -

The trade receivables that were neither past due nor
impaired relate to a number of diversified customers for
whom there was no recent history of default.

The trade receivables that were past due but not impaired
relate to a number of independent customers that have
a good track record with the Group. Based on past
experience, the directors of the Company are of the opinion
that no provision for impairment is necessary in respect of
these balances as there has not been a significant change
in credit quality and the balances are still considered fully
recoverable.

FhEERk(EE)BRAR
—T——FFR
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22.

AR BEREBERRK

22.

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

REH RAF

Group Company
—B2——F | _T-ZTF | ZB——F | _T-ZTF
2011 2010 2011 2010
ARET | ARETT | ARETR | ARETIT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
BT Prepayments 6,468 9,739 - -
Hd & E A U ER Deposits and other receivables 18,194 3,438 68 72
24,662 13,177 68 72
B Impairment (386) (386) - -
24,276 12,791 68 72

2011 K% 20104 + E fth /B I G R B 13 1R
AT E B o

AT ABA L B A Wi (B 7 4 45 18 Bl 2 R
EHE MWK 2 B - E RIS RIE 2 Hit
FEUGR RN FHER 2 REIARERNKE
B WIRHIA AU D o ANSE N BRI F
R TR e E IR EEHEE -

1] 7R 260 5 7 428 1 350068 8 ) L Ao B SR O B
[ B B2 EL b 3T HANY SR B 01T R AC SR 2 EL At
BEARE -

EYANG HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO., LIMITED
Annual Report 2011

There is no movement in the provision for impairment of
other receivables during the years 2011 and 2010.

Included in the above provision for impairment of other
receivables is a provision for individually impaired other
receivables. The individually impaired other receivables
relate to long outstanding prepayments to suppliers which
are not expected to be recovered. The Group does not
hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over these
balances.

The carrying amounts of the other receivables that were
neither past due nor impaired related to other debtors for
whom there was no recent history of default.

101
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23.

RERBESEYREERRTER

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGED
BANK DEPOSITS

REE Group
—E——F —TTF
2011 2010
ARETR AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
& MIRIT4 5 Cash and bank balances 65,887 48,481
EHER Time deposit 125,772 18,120
191,659 66,601
B EREMZERERE  Less: Pledged bank deposits for
ZBHEIRRI TR bills payable and letters of credit (13,927) (11,166)
BRIBITERCEEIME Pledged bank deposits for
RITER(HIFE27(0)) bank loans (note 27(a)) (111,845) (6,954)
REMBHRARAZ Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated
ReMRSEEY statement of financial position 65,887 48,481
hnc WEERRBIEAE AR Add: Bank deposits with original maturity of
3B A 2 HRITIEH less than three months when acquired:
ERENEERERFE Pledged for bills payable and letters of credit - 10,666
ERBITER Pledged for bank loans 4,600 6,954
HmEREMERANL Cash and cash equivalents in the
Re kB2 EEY consolidated statement of cash flows 70,487 66,101
RAF] Company
—E——F T TF
2011 2010
ARET T ARKETTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
R e MIRTTAE R Cash and bank balances 378 383

RIFERR AEB RS MRS EEY
A REZIE & AR41,486,000 7T
(20104F : AR¥32,897,0007T) ° AREE
TN ERABRAEMER - AW - BIEH
B KB 2 SNEE FIET ~ BB RIZATIMNE
BRGNS BEREEITIN
X ZIRITHRIBARE -

At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s cash
and cash equivalents denominated in RMB amounted to
RMB41,486,000 (2010: RMB32,897,000). The RMB is not
freely convertible into other currencies, however, under
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations
and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of
Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted
to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

FEER(EE)GRAA
—T——FFR
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23. HEeRBESEEYRECEBRITER

-
=)
\/7%5\ /

RITFRDIIREE R RITERMNEIRZH
M RERERAE. o K2 HE B s HAR S 38
RAEAFAE - WIRE RS B E 7R
KERERA B o RITAEBR R ERRITER
FREAL BB OTRLEEZEERT
N RERREEEYRCERFRZER
EEAEAFERE °

24. BREZRIARENRE
RBEHR RERBPREEZENE
PEAMENRIE 2 REAFTT

23.

24,

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGED

BANK DEPOSITS (continued)

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for
varying periods of between three months and one year,
and earn interest at the respective short term time deposit
rates. The bank balances and pledged bank deposits are
deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history
of default. The carrying amounts of the cash and cash
equivalents and the pledged deposits approximate to their
fair values.

TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

An aged analysis of the trade and bills payables as at the
end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as
follows:

rEH

Group
—E——fF —ET-TF
2011 2010
ARET T ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
90HA Within 90 days 65,352 55,824
912180 H 91 to 180 days 3,433 618
181 £ 360 H 181 to 360 days 13 826
1224 1 to 2 years 623 261
2E3F 2 to 3 years 18 58
69,439 57,582

BNESZERERE + —RMR30E120H
Bt e

EYANG HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO., LIMITED
Annual Report 2011

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are
normally settled on terms of 30 to 120 days.
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EEWA - ExtERAREMENR 25. DEFERRED INCOME, ACCRUALS AND OTHER
PAYABLES
REH RAF
Group Company
—B——F | _T-ZTF | ZB——F | _T-ZTF
2011 2010 2011 2010
ARET | ARETT | ARETR | ARETIT
RMB’000 | RMB’000 | RMB’000 | RMB’000
FEIEUTA Deferred income 1,055 806 - =
Bt E R Accruals 1,337 1,098 1,050 980
E Ath E TR Other payables 33,888 31,299 191 46
36,280 33,203 1,241 1,026

HAENRR T SRR FRER -

The other payables are non-interest-bearing and will
generally mature within one year.

FHER(EBR)ARRA

—T——FFR
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26. EEWA

DEFERRED INCOME

BN B Government grants
rEE ARYET T
Group RMB’000
R2010F 12 H31 B & Carrying amount at 31 December 2010 and
20111 A1 AZEEE 1 January 2011 4,274
E5-dun! Granted 1,029
BiE AW (F3E5) Amortised as income (note 5) (1,055)
M 2011412 A31 HZREE Carrying amount at 31 December 2011 4,248
BEERLERA - EstER Current portion included in deferred income,
Ko EoAth FE AT ER 2 BNERER 9 accruals and other payables (1,055)
FERNEAES 5 Non-current portion 3,193

175 & B2 AR 75 5 U B 8 B K% BT A B 7 fR R
REBY  AIBFMBIE AR R FERE
R B2 A FEERAELTRAR
B YHEAMEEFRMAIAFRAAKE
MEFREFAD PREAZEARGER °

EYANG HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO., LIMITED
Annual Report 2011

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. The fair
value of the government grants is credited to a deferred
income account and is released to the statement of
comprehensive income over the expected useful life of the
relevant asset by equal annual instalments.
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26.

27.

EEWA(E) 26. DEFERRED INCOME (continued)
BB (&) Government grants (continued)
WA RERAT W E 2 BT B B ERE B The government grants have been received from various
EEMLCCZEEBBME Rz - BREBUN government authorities specifically for the purchases of
WM EEMREBELEMLCCZAE qualified plant and equipment in respect of the production of
BBE kR EE —IRHIN  EmeEE MLCC. Except for the condition that the government grants
A o must be specifically used for the purchases of qualified plant
and equipment in respect of the production of MLCC, there
are no other conditions relating to these grants.
FFESRITER 27. INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS
REE Group
—E——F | ZFT%F
BERIBHAR 2011 2010
Effective floating FHAE | AR TR | ARKBTT
interest rate Maturity RMB’000 RMB’000
BN EA Current
FTEIRITER Interest-bearing bank
—F R loans — secured 3.36% - 6.72% 2011-2012 261,590 110,666
261,590 110,666
DA Analysed into:
FEEERT BIRTT Interest-bearing bank
BX 1FR loans repayable:

Within one year

261,590 110,666

AEBZRITERMIBITEERATER

(a) AEE£FEAEARE111,845,0007T
(20104 : ARR#56,954,00070) 2 & T
RITER G K&

(b) EHE2010F12A31HILFEAREEZ
BRMEFRE AN ARE 39,258,000 2 &
T - BERE&ME -

BEFRITE R AR 160,000,000 7T
(2010412 A31 H: AR#¥ 90,000,000 7T)
X AR #101,590,000 7t (20104 12 A 31
B : AR® 20,666,000 7C) 7 BlIAA R K&
ELHIE -

RITEFREAEEEAFERE -

The Group’s bank loans and bank facilities are secured by:

(@) certain of the Group’s bank deposits amounting to
RMB111,845,000 (2010: RMB6,954,000); and

(b) certain property, plant and equipment of the
Group with a net carrying amount of approximately
RMB39,258,000 for the year ended 31 December
2010.

The secured bank loans of approximately RMB160,000,000
(31 December 2010: RMB90,000,000) and
RMB101,590,000 (31 December 2010: RMBZ20,666,000)
are denominated in RMB and United States dollars,
respectively.

The carrying amounts of the bank loans approximate to their
fair values.

FhEERk(EE)BRAR
—T——FFR
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27. FERITERE) 27. DEFERRED INCOME (continued)
AREBHU TN AT ZRITRE ¢ The Group has the following undrawn banking facilities:
—E-——F —E-TF
2011 2010
AR®T T ARKETTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FENFE -1 FREm Floating rate-expiring within one year 54,826 225,825
28. B 28. SHARE CAPITAL
—F——F —F—FF
2011 2010
ARET T ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
VERE ¢ Authorised:
1,000,000,000 A% &A% 1,000,000,000 ordinary shares of
EE0.01 Bz Rk HK$0.01 each 10,000 10,000
BEITRAR Issued and fully paid
405,500,000 f% (2010 & 405,500,000 (31 December 2010:
12AH 318 : 405,500,000) ordinary shares of
405,500,000 % ) & h% HK$0.01 each
E{E0.01 BTz EE@k 4,055 4,055
ARETTEE Equivalent to RMB’000 3,824 3,824
FAN - ARBIZEERDBETRAFES There was no change in the authorised and issued capital of
] B &) o the Company during the year.

EYANG HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO., LIMITED
Annual Report 2011
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ARBEE —ABERESE (%8 ])
AHARELERNELERMCEERS
HERHERHLOK - ZFTEIZARERS
B2 B IE (a) AN BE(I K B A R A0 a4t
BEEES ETAZBIRBES  HEH
fEREEEBRBAA L (o) AR E{EM
REARMESSHEFES (BB
HITES) O AKBEMKERRINERK
FEEBR () A EBEAKE A RNE R
SIRFBEER (@) ARBEAK B RRNE
F B ¥R BiF|m - &
BE - REIREK: HAXARETAKER
AR RET - BT - MBS EMENE
A AR EXHEMRBOALHK
B R(QEMATEALTHBBEAL - %
st &7 2007 11 A30 A AR - k& FE 4%
AEHERT - EREZBAEI0FABR

RIFARBEZA B2 & BB M ARTT R
TTHEIMNE IR LR BT A S E R
181 ARITE RO ] LA RE B T (£ 1R AT
TRINRSBRMNEE - TEEARAF
TR B EITIRA30% © WEFRIZ LA
AFRENARITEREESS]RE &7
EREER AR FHMEMAEOE ZTRD
10% ° R\EZATE - REMR121EAHE
ABTTZTEEAERSEENRER
BB LRA/ARTHEMEECD TR
H)1% o E— R HBBZ EROBIRER
EERRNBR RS LHEfE

The Company operates a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the
success of the Group’s operations. Eligible participants of
the Scheme include (a) any proposed employee, any full-
time or part-time employee, or a person for the time being
seconded to work full-time or part-time for any member of
the Group; (b) a director or proposed director (including an
independent non-executive director) of any member of the
Group; (c) a direct or indirect shareholder of any member
of the Group; (d) a supplier of goods or services to any
member of the Group; (e) a customer, consultant, business
or joint venture partner, franchisee, contractor, agent or
representative of any member of the Group; (f) a person or
entity that provides design, research, development or other
support or any advisory, consultancy, professional or other
services to any member of the Group; and (g) an associate
of any of the foregoing persons. The Scheme became
effective on 30 November 2007 and, unless otherwise
cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from
that date.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding share options granted and yet
to be exercised under the Scheme and any other share
options granted and yet to be exercised under any other
schemes shall not exceed 30% of the Company’s issued
share capital from time to time. The maximum number of
unexercised share options currently permitted to be granted
under the Scheme is an amount equivalent, upon their
exercise, to 10% of the shares of the Company in issue at
any time. The maximum number of shares issuable under
share options to each eligible participant in the Scheme
within any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the shares of
the Company in issue at any time. Any further grant of share
options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’
approval in a general meeting.

FHEER(EE)BRAR A
T —FFR
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8 X (i) BEE L B 5 AL B AR A
IR TE B R T B 3RERFTIRAF B R
FTUTIE o

RO BB TR R AR B SR AR
RE LR ZHIHER -

EYANG HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO., LIMITED
Annual Report 2011

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of
their associates, are subject to approval in advance by
the independent non-executive directors. In addition, any
share options granted to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director of the Company, or to
any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of
the Company in issue at any time or with an aggregate value
(based on the price of the Company’s shares at the date
of grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month
period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in
a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted
within 28 days from the date of offer, upon payment of a
nominal consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The
exercise period of the share options granted under the
Scheme is determinable by the directors of the Company,
and commences after a certain vesting period and ends on
a date which is not later than 10 years from the date of offer
of the share options or the expiry of the Scheme, if earlier.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable
by the directors, but may not be less than whichever the
highest of (i) the nominal value of the Company’s shares;
(i) the Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s
shares on the date of grant of the share options; and (i) the
average Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheets for the five business days immediately preceding the
date of grant.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.
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20. BRESHEI(E) 29.
RIEZETE] A TIEBRERF AR ARITE :

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)
The following share options were outstanding under the
Scheme during the year:

—E——F —E-TF
2011 2010

THEESR TEETR

BT BT

Exercise Exercise
price BREZA price FEAREZE
HK$ Number of HK$  Number of
per share options per share options
W1A1H At 1 January 1.052 18,400,000 1.052 20,400,000
R Forfeited 1.052  (1,200,000) 1.052  (2,000,000)
R®12H31H At 31 December 17,200,000 18,400,000

RBERREHRITENBREOTEER

The exercise price and exercise periods of the share options

IERAT outstanding as at the end of the reporting period are as
follows:
—E-——-F
2011
TEE
BRERT
Exercise price
BREHE HK$ 1THEH
Number of options per share Exercise period
2011 AN EHE-2017411 A29H
17,200,000* 1.052 2011 results announcement date — 29 November 2017
17,200,000
—E-TF
2010
TEE
FRAET
Exercise price
BREHE HKS$ 1TEH
Number of options per share Exercise period
2010 ENEHE-2017411 A29 R
16,560,000 1.052 2010 results announcement date — 29 November 2017
2011 HEENERE-2017511 A29H
1,840,000* 1.052 2011 results announcement date — 29 November 2017
18,400,000

FhEER(EE)GRRAA
—T——FFR



. A RITERITEMNBRESEBR
FAKENEEES - FIHWOT

FEARERA R A BRI m 1 1B F < A 81T
£ - MR BB m2EE 3BEFR
AAF 7 AR B IEHHITE RS D BERRE
R AERI 60% * 30% K 10%

WL B M2 SFENIFZH -
AREBEZE2008F 12 A31 HIFFE 24
EZFENEREZE 2007 F12 A31 H IEF
EEIMTDIR18% » AN E & ZE20094F 12
H 31 BIEFE 2 £FZFFEERE 2= 2008
F12 A1 BIEFEZIMTDN18% + KA
EEEHZE2010F 12 A1 HILFEE 2 &%
2R HEEE 2= 20094 12 A31 HIFFE
AR DRA8% » J7 Al BERITE RS HE -

i LA R I R BE N B R R EAK - AR AR
RER M AR R 80% BRITHE - R
TTERBBER TR YR EAIRTEESR
A F A R R F RRATIE o

HE20M11FE12A31BILEE - AEER
R 2008 F % H R A &F AR T 2 B3 A% fe
R IR 2 59,0008 TT(HHER AR
50,0007T) (20104 : 840,00078 7T » HE%
RARE727,0007T) °

RFEEBR BREZFELARAA
17,200,000 19 R1T{F fE R #E o IRIEA A A
RITHRRAZRE - BEATES T A ERE
153 B 58 AN 31T 17,200,000 B AN A B & B
f% - EANE B1TARZA 172,00078 7T & AR 5
(8 17,922,400 8 7T (RETE1TRZ) ©

RILEMBIHRRE R - REBEZAEARF
17,200,000 17 RITEERBAHE - (EARF]
Rz BRE BT 4.24% -

EYANG HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO., LIMITED
Annual Report 2011

The number of share options that can be exercised
during the exercise periods is dependent on the
operating results of the Group, details of which are
as follows:

The share options may not be exercised on the first
anniversary of the date of grant and may be conditionally
exercised up to 60%, 30% and 10% of the total share
options on the second, third and fourth anniversaries of the
date of grant respectively.

The share options may only be fully exercised in the
event that the audited net profit of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2008 increases not less than 18%
as compared to that for the year ended 31 December
2007, the audited net profit of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2009 increases not less than 18%
as compared to that for the year ended 31 December
2008 and the audited net profit of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2010 increases not less than 18% as
compared to that for the year ended 31 December 2009
at the anniversary of the second, third and fourth years
respectively from the date of grant.

The share options may only be exercised up to 80% of
the share options as set out in the above in the event that
the above conditions are not met in the respective years.
The unexercised share options may be accumulated and
fully exercised in the next year in the event that the above
conditions are met in the respective years.

The Group recognised a share option expense of
HK$59,000 (equivalent to RMB50,000) (2010: HK$840,000,
equivalent to RMB727,000) during the year ended 31
December 2011 for the share options granted in 2008 and
vested during the year.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had
17,200,000 share options outstanding under the Scheme.
The exercise in full of the remaining share options would,
under the present capital structure of the Company, result
in the issue of 17,200,000 additional ordinary shares of the
Company and additional issued capital of HK$172,000 and
share premium of HK$17,922,400 (before issue expenses).

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the
Company had 17,200,000 share options outstanding under
the Scheme, which represented approximately 4.24% of the
Company’s shares in issue as at that date.
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30. f@fE 30. RESERVES

(@ ZAKE (@ Group
REBNAEERBAEFEE 2 HE The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the
SRENEHPNP BRI 2R EE movements therein for the current and prior years
mEBERET o are presented in the consolidated statement of

changes in equity of the financial statements.

ANEEZEHARE The contributed surplus of the Group represents:

() BEEESEHDKEMEA () the difference of RMB203,536,000 being the
AIZRAHEHBEREHRG excess of the nominal value of the shares
BEH AR R R W BT and contributed surplus of the subsidiaries
ZEHEBEZEZEAREK acquired pursuant to the group reorganisation
203,536,000 7T ; over the nominal value of the Company’s

shares issued in exchange therefor;

(if) & M 3R s F 55 JE 15 AR AR BR U (if) the deficit of RMBZ2,823,000 arising from
IB R e [5 2= A 2 BALA the acquisition of DG Eyang from the non-
R#2,823,0007C : & controlling shareholders of DG Eyang; and

(i) mEEERSEERIE (i) the deficit of RMB1,774,000 arising from the
BMELEZEMARE disposal of SZ Eycom to the related party.
1,774,000 7T °

FHER(EBR)ARRA
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MZ=F——F+=HA=+—H 31 December 2011
30. fEE(E) 30. RESERVES (continued)
(b) b NN (b) Company
Ex B
RORER REfE RS
Share [ERERE  BHBH Exchange 2®EE  Proposed
Mz  premium Share option Contributed ~fluctuation Accumulated final @
Note  account reserve surplus reserve losses  dividend Total
ARETT ARETr ARETR ARETR ARETr ARETR ARETx
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
R201051 A1H At 1 January 2010 104,657 4,797 364,962 (4,343) (64,910) 9,273 424,426
ERNRESFEEE  Total comprehensive loss
for the year - - - (2,165) (2,881) - (5,046)
REEBERETE  Equty-settled share option
arrangements 29 - 727 - - = = 727
Bk E Share options forfeited - (480) - - 480 - -
ERA09ERSRE  Final 2009 dividends decared - - - - st I P
BR2010ERMKRE  Proposed final 2010 dividend - - - - (10239 10,239 -
P2010E12A31H  Asat 31 December 2010 104,657 5,044 364,962 (6,508) (67,550) 10,239 410,834
ERNRESFEEE  Total comprehensive loss
for the year - - - (3,394) 36,651 - 33,267
TEEERRERE  Equity-settled share option
arrangements 29 = 50 = = = = 50
RUEERYIE Share options forfeited - (307) - - 307 - -
ERA0ERSRE  Final 2010 dividends declared - - - - - (102%9) (10,239
R2011E12 8318 Asat31 December 2011 104,657 4,787 364,952 (9,902) (30,592) - 433,902

ARRZERBBERESEEAR
KRB AR ZIRERAERARFD
BITRMEECERE -

BREREEFERHERRITRE
MBREATE  E—FFRBAY
BHREKE24B RN MRS
MEBRNEL - ZERERNH
B EETERERERNDEE
R SR A BE A JE T S B8 R
REBRERE SN -

EYANG HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO., LIMITED

Annual Report 2011

The contributed surplus of the Company represents the
difference between the cost of investments in subsidiaries
pursuant to the group reorganisation and the nominal value
of the Company’s shares issued.

The share option reserve comprises the fair value of share
options granted which are yet to be exercised, as further
explained in the accounting policy for share-based payment
transactions in note 2.4 to the financial statements. The
amount will either be transferred to the share premium
account when the related options are exercised, or be
transferred to retained profits should the related options
expire or be forfeited.
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31.

REENTH

(a)

(b)

ERHBA
AEEREKEHOLHELKRE
WE(HEE15)  RAS <HOFH
H1FE6FTE -

R2011F12 A31 B » A& BERIE
BFAPET A T Y BB R B 2 1]
Bl &AL - BRI ARRFER
SRR ¢

31.

OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

(a)

As lessor

The Group leases its investment properties (note 15)
under operating lease arrangements, with leases
negotiated for terms ranging from one to six years.

At 31 December 2011, the Group had total future
minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable
operating leases with its tenants falling due as
follows:

REE
Group
—g——-%| —T-TF
2011 2010
AR®T T ARKETTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
1R Within one year 4,724 5,474
FE2EHF In the second to fifth years,
(BREERE24F) inclusive 2,751 7,503
5F 1% After five years - 57
7,475 13,203
ERABEAN (b) Aslessee

AEBERELEHOLHERET
B R ERYE - KA 2B
FHIR2%F -

R2011FE12 A31 B - KAEEIRE
AT B EA R Bl 2R 2 71 AT R E] 48 & A
4 BENARSERESEENT

The Group leases certain of its factory and office
premises under operating lease arrangements.
Leases for properties are negotiated for terms of two
years.

At 31 December 2011, the Group had total future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases falling due as follows:

AEEKATF

Group/Company
—E——F —E-TF
2011 2010
ARETT AREFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
1FR Within one year 340 212
F2F In the second year 305 -
645 212

FhEER(EE)GRRAA
—T——FFR
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32. &L 32. COMMITMENTS
In addition to the operating lease commitments as set out
in note 31(b) above, the Group had the following capital

B _ESCRHTRE 31 () P 2 S & AR K AHES]
RBER - AEREZEAAFENT

commitments at the end of the reporting period:

AEH
Group
—E——F —E-FF
2011 2010
AR¥T T AREEF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
BRI 4B R B Contracted, but not provided for:
BT Buildings 7,710 14,578
R K i es Plant and machinery 17,820 310
25,530 14,888
33. TARAEE 33. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
REE KRN R R ERE R £ & K A At the end of the reporting period, neither the Group nor the
aE- Company had any significant contingent liabilities.

EYANG HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO., LIMITED
Annual Report 2011
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES

The Group had the following material transactions with
related parties during the year and balances with related
parties at the end of the reporting period:

34. BAEILRZKRERR 34.

AEBRNFRERBES 2EAR S INK
EHAREERRE T 2 AR

(1) P e n g (1) Recurring transactions
BELER RHME —2——F —E-TF
Name of parties Nature of transactions 2011 2010
ARBTR AREBTFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
REMABEXEARRA () BRI EUE
(IR=x@E)) ZHEBWA () 57 57
Dongguan Guangtong Rental income received from
Enterprise Co., Ltd. DG Guangtong (a)
(“DG Guangtong”)
REMEGEZERRAA (i) BR=EGKE
(IMR=REE]) Z BN () 36 36
Dongguan Deyang Industrial Rental income received from
Co., Ltd. (“DG Deyang”) DG Deyang (a)
R IIE A (iii) AR YI1838 EHE MLCC (b)
SZ Eycom (i) Sale of MLCC to SZ Eycom (b) 2,119 2,660
BRYIERKE 2 HE WA (@)
Rental income received from
SZ Eycom (a) 867 867
B Notes:

(i) RERBZBRRBARARITES
BRIZER S5 4 2 SLERIRER o

(i) REEBZBRRBEARE ZBRE
RBRLZNE -

(ii) BB ZERRARNARES
BRIZERSEE « MIBR T REBMHELE -

@ A ERE T 2R
TR 2 ARAT S -

(b) ZERZIE—MRBERGIET &
TERAEEREBYEFPRHEZ

{ER3K ©

EERE LR SGEAEE BT
FIF BB T o

(i)

(iii)

In the opinion of the directors,

The shareholders of DG Guangtong are the brother and
sisters of Mr. Chen Weirong, an executive director of the
Company.

The shareholders of DG Deyang are the brothers of Ms.
Luo Zhanli, a shareholder of the Company.

The ultimate shareholders of SZ Eycom are Mr. Chen
Weirong, Ms. Shuang Mei and Mr. Liao Jie, directors of the
Company.

The tenancy agreements entered into between the Group
and the related parties based on mutually agreed terms.

The transactions were conducted in accordance with
normal commercial terms, which should be no less
favourable than those offered by the Group to its
independent customers.

the above

transactions were carried out in the ordinary course
of business of the Group.

FHER(EBR)ARRA
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34. BEIRZNRERE) 34.

(2 FEEXS

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES (continued)
(2) Non-recurring transactions

MEL AR REME s —T—TE
Name of party Nature of transaction 2011 2010
ARET T ARKETTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
wIIER MRV EBYE 2 BRTEE (o)
SZ Eycom Service fee received from
SZ Eycom (c) 39 -
PR - Note:
(c) AEEARY BRI LR S ER (©) The Group and SZ Eycom have entered into a logistics

# o RIIEBERRAARE SN EE
R 52 RBE(RBRYIEBE TR
KREBEER 2 EWEEZ03%x

) o
g

(3) FBAELEEHR

cooperation agreement, SZ Eycom will pay to the Group
for each transaction, a service fee, which will be calculated
at 0.3% of the value of the goods which is shipped by the
Group as instructed by SZ Eycom.

3) Balances with related parties

—E——F —T—TF
2011 2010
ARETT ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’000

FEW A Due from
REENB DG Guangtong 2,648 1,923
L DG Deyang 824 521
BB SZ Eycom 3,267 4,466
6,739 6,910

RESERSEZME - BEH
RERERTEERY - ELEHRZ
RE(EEEAHERS -

EYANG HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO., LIMITED
Annual Report 2011

The balances with related parties are all trade in nature,
unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms of
repayment. The carrying amounts of these balances
approximate to their fair values.
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34. BEAIRZREHRE)

4) FEFZEEEEABZHH

34.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES (continued)
(4) Compensation of key management personnel of

the Group

—E——F —E-TF
2011 2010
ARBT R ARKETTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
e KoERL Salaries and allowances 2,631 2,083
RIRAERIH K Retirement benefit contributions 110 87
& #ie 4k BB ISR Equity-settled share option expense 25 344

SNFEEEERE Total compensation paid to key
UN=Wd 't management personnel 2,766 2,514

EEME 2 FHBEHN EXHIES

35. MBEREEZBHNREE

AEEZIESRIAMTETARNE
BT EBRTERRRAS MRITHER - B
TRTAZEZANNAAREZEZE
HEL AREBEZHRARNLELEE
ErHMEREENAE  HINEKES
R S BN B B RR

AEESMT ARz EZREBR BN EE
2 INERKR - EERRERDE A
R BREFERZUIAEETRE AR 2K
R - BEABCRBLAT -

IR
AEFEHOTRNRBHERESRA
BN AT BRI E 2 F 5 E G RMEEE
Mk BT REM -

35.

Further details of directors’ emoluments are included
in note 8 above.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments, other than
derivatives, comprise interest-bearing bank loans and cash
and bank balances. The main purpose of these financial
instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s operations.
The Group has various other financial assets and liabilities
such as trade receivables and trade payables, which arise
directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and
liquidity risk. The board of directors reviews and agrees
policies for managing each of these risks and they are
summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s debt
obligations with floating interest rates and time deposits with
fixed interest rates which are short term.

FhEER(EE)GRRAA
—T——FFR
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35.

MEEREER 2B NWRBEGE) 35.

FRE (&)
AEB 2 RITEREREF R REREIHN
B RS IR R HIRE 27 ©

TRINERMBEMEERFTTENIE)
T RSB AT MM A SR B RO i (E
FREREMNRZEET)HNERZAEAE
BE o HRE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

The effective interest rates and terms of repayment of
the bank loans of the Group are set out in note 27 to the
financial statements.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a
reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all other
variables held constant, of the Group’s profit before tax
(through the impact of floating rate borrowings) and the
Group’s equity during the year.

R A 2 A
i, ORd) R
i (GEd) Increase/ N, (Ed)*
Increase/ (decrease) Increase/
(decrease) in profit (decrease) in
rEH Group in basis points before tax equity*
ARETTT ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
2011%12H31H 31 December 2011
AR RMB 100 (744) (564)
AR RMB (100) 744 564
2010%12H 31 H 31 December 2010
ARHE RMB 100 (28) (24)
AR RMB (100) 28 24
FEE [ By Foreign currency risk
REBBERSFEERER - ZRABRBLES The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such

@L\HFE@ZUJ%EE%ZE%}E?T%%
BEHRITERSIE - Zii'ilﬁffﬁ'ﬁfé*”
AIVEHINEARN  ERUBEREE
HEﬂtﬁrﬁ%'}F_%‘}Z%%MI\EHKMZ1

ABRERERZERERR o A& EL
?I\’%M&)\&E’ﬁif’ﬁk@ﬁ?ﬁﬂ%@ﬂéﬁﬁ&i
ZEMNREHE  RMEMERRHHER
LR

EYANG HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO., LIMITED
Annual Report 2011

exposures arise from sales, purchases or bank loans by
operating units in currencies other than the units’ functional
currencies. The Group entered into forward currency
contracts for bank loans and tends to accept foreign
currency exchange risk avoidance or allocation terms when
arriving at purchase and sale contracts to minimise its
transactional currency exposures. The Group takes rolling
forecast on the foreign currency revenue and expenses,
and matches the currency and the amounts incurred, so as
to alleviate the impact on business due to exchange rate
fluctuations.

19
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35.

BRRERERE 2 BNREEE)

HME BB ()
TRINRERAEMERRENETRE
EHRET BIRBEZHZEXRSE
i 7 B B B B AR SR I 2 BR A B A R AR £R
EzESREREERARBARFEZIM
B GURRE -

35.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency risk (continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end
of the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in
the United States dollar, Hong Kong dollar and Japanese
yen exchange rates, with all other variables held constant, of
the Group’s profit before tax and the Group’s equity due to
changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities.

RRETSB AT
A,
(R2)
#hn,/ Increase/ REmIEMm,/
(R2) 2 (decrease) (R A)
Increase/ in profit Increase/
(decrease) before (decrease)
AEE Group rate income tax in equity*
% AREETTT ARKET T
% RMB’000 RMB’000
201112831 H 31 December 2011
=T AR E  If United States dollar weakens against RMB () 3,632 809
BT AR E  If Hong Kong dollar weakens against RMB (5) (963) (461)
WEEXAREEE If Japanese Yen weakens against RMB (5) 256 @)
=T ARBIHE  If United States dollar strengthens against RMB 5 (3,632) (809)
ST ARBFHE  If Hong Kong dollar strengthens against RMB 5 963 461
MBEEXAREFHE If Japanese Yen strengthens against RMB 5 (256) 3
201012 A 31 H 31 December 2010
fEIT A AREEE  If United States dollar weakens against RMB (5) (778) 227
BT ARBEEE  If Hong Kong dollar weakens against RMB (5) (1,922) 167
WHERAREBE If Japanese Yen weakens against RMB (5) 75 @)
=T AREFE  If United States dollar strengthens against RMB 5 778 (227)
BT AREFE  If Hong Kong dollar strengthens against RMB 5 1,922 (167)
HEEEAREFE If Japanese Yen strengthens against RMB 5 (75) 3
* NEIERE & A Excluding retained profits

FheERk(EE)BRAR
—T——FFR
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35.

=-+—H 31 December 2011

MERREEZ B RBE(

EERE

FEWRE B ERE %E@%ﬁéléﬂﬁFﬁ
HrZRAEERR - XEBEFBURER
mAa R fouaf?22%§ﬁ5§ﬁ%§ WHEEE
REEREWE 5 AR o AN G B F £ B i
2RI TERX o

ﬁﬁ$¢lﬁ%é@ﬁ?ﬂﬁ$a%ﬁé&

ReHEYREMBRKK) 2 EERR

R FTEOMESE - LREF] &X%%
BEZEKRHEE -
AEBEEBARTEEREBNELS

=TEARS BARAKERKE SRR
mkg“ﬂﬁTH%F&ﬁ¥Z%ﬁ@
B AREBRYERE ST ZEER

BRAAKBERREESRIMELZEE
Rz Eth B8R - R R R
im¢&§°

MEE Sk
AEBEERBRRADECHE TAERHE
BEemRERE A TAZRASHIAR
TREE(MEKE SRR 2EIHA KA
‘I'Z(« Mziﬁimhi °

AEBZBRREFARRENASEE
W REBRTEFUNENEEEESS

Ko

EYANG HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO., LIMITED
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35.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk

The carrying amount of the trade receivables represents the
Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to its
financial assets. The Group has a policy in place to ensure
that sales are made to customers with an appropriate credit
history and to closely monitor the collection of the trade
receivables on an ongoing basis. The Group’s exposure to
bad debts is not significant.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which
comprise cash and cash equivalents and other receivables,
arises from default of the counterparty, with a maximum
exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these financial
assets.

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties. There are no significant concentrations of
credit risk within the Group as the customer bases of the
Group’s trade receivables are widely dispersed.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure
to credit risk arising from trade receivables are disclosed in
note 21 to these financial statements.

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using
a recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the
maturity of both its financial instruments and financial assets
(e.g., trade receivables) and projected cash flows from
operations.

The Group’s policy is to maintain sufficient cash and cash
equivalents and have available funding through bank loans
to meet its working capital requirements.
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35. UBEREEIENRBEKRE) 35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (continued)

FEEeEBm(EZ) Liquidity risk (continued)

RIBEHR  REB R ARG ZSHERE The maturity profile of the Group’s and the Company’s

BIBET A ARBEIR A 2 B HIS R ¢ financial liabilities as at the end of the reporting period,
based on the contractual undiscounted payments, is as
follows:

AEE —E %

Group 2011

DR1E
MERE Lessthan 1580k Bt
On demand 1year Over 1 year Total

ARBTRT AR¥TR AR®TR AR®TR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

T EIRITEK Interest-bearing bank loans - 261,590 - 261,590
FERTE SRF R Trade and bills payables
JEANE e - 69,439 - 69,439
E MR R Other payables and accruals
EEtER - 35,225 - 35,225
- 366,254 - 366,254
A%E .
Group 2010
DR F
MERKE  Less than 16 E Er
On demand 1 year Over 1 year Total

ARBETIT ARETET ARBTT ARETT
RMB’'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000

TEIRITER Interest-bearing bank loans - 110,666 = 110,666
BB ZERR Trade and bills payables
AN - 57,582 - 57,582
HAb BRI Other payables and accruals
FEETE R = 32,397 = 32,397
- 200,645 - 200,645

FHER(EBR)ARRA
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N—=

35.

EYANG HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO., LIMITED

BHEARERE BN RBEEKE)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

KREESEAKR(E) Liquidity risk (continued)
AT —E——F
Company 2011
PR1EF
RERK Less than st
On demand 1 year Total
AR¥T T AR®T T AR¥T T
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
HifEN R ESE R  Other payables and accruals - 1,241 1,241
FET B A R IE Due to subsidiaries 23,275 - 23,275
23,275 1,241 24,516
PiN/NG]| —E-FF
Company 2010
K
R E K Less than @t
On demand 1 year Total
ARETT ARETTT ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Hib R EFTE A  Other payables and accruals - 1,026 1,026
FEAT B A RIRIE Due to subsidiaries 19,793 - 19,793
19,793 1,026 20,819
EREHE Capital management

AEBEAEE T EAMNERFRAKH
NERFRENERLE - A
FEBABRBREEZRZRAEL

2 g 4T X
BRI

Annual Report 2011

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to
support its business and maximise shareholders’ value.
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35.

36.

BHEREE BN REEE)

EXRNEE(E)

ANE BT 1B A AR A AR IR A AR O
B HELAE - ZHFAFABRERE
B AEESRERABRERE ZRES A
MR FEEAKEBEITHIG - HE 2011
ER2010FE12 AT BILEE - BEER
ZBE  BMERSEFIEES -

AEBNEERBLREREN EER
B KRB BEHFREMR A S N EERF
B ERFENHERITER  BNES
R RN REREMEN TR SRR
CEHEEYEHE - BEAEERREEAZRE
s - AEBCBREKEERBLL R
HMBEREZKFE REBEHRZE
ERFELEMT

35.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Capital management (continued)

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions.
To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were
made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing
capital during the years ended 31 December 2011 and
2010.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which
is net debt divided by equity plus net debt. Net debt is
calculated as the sum of interest-bearing bank loans, trade
and bills payables, and other payables less cash and cash
equivalents. Capital represents equity attributable to owners
of the parent. The Group’s policy is to keep the gearing ratio
at a reasonable level. The gearing ratios as at the ends of
the reporting periods are as follows:

—E——F —ZT—2F

2011 2010

ARETT ARET T

RMB’000 RMB’000

sHEERTTER Interest-bearing bank loans 261,590 110,666

T E SR Trade payables 69,439 57,582

E A FERT R Other payables 33,888 31,299

B ReKReEFEEY Less: Cash and cash equivalents (note 23)

(FffE23) (70,487) (66,101)

294,430 133,446

B F5 Net debt 294,430 133,446

HARER AE(LER Equity attributable to owners of the parent 440,571 437,270

T AR F R Equity and net debt 735,001 570,716

BEBEAELE Gearing ratio 40% 23%
g E Yk 36. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

M HmREN2012F3 A0 A KES=SH

AR TIE -

The financial statements were approved and authorised for

issue by the board of directors on 30 March 2012.

FHER(EBR)ARQA
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